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Introduction
The AAMGA/NAPSLO Education Foundations Merger Committee is pleased to present this Merger
Proposal for consideration by the AAMGA Education Foundation Board of Trustees and the Derek
Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation Board of Directors. The Committee has leveraged strengths of
each foundation in designing the merged education foundation supporting the Wholesale & Specialty
Insurance Association (“WSIA”) and all its constituencies. This Merger Proposal (1) outlines the material
terms relating to the merger of the AAMGA and NAPSLO Foundations; (2) outlines the process and timing
by which the merger will be considered, approved and effectuated; and (3) documents the terms and
conditions applying to the merger.
Letter of Intent
A Letter of Intent (“LOI”) was presented as a preliminary plan of merger and was generally accepted by
each of the Foundations. Accordingly, the parties continue to understand and agree that unless and until
the Agreement and Plan of Merger has been executed by the AAMGA Education Foundation (“AAMGA”)
and the Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation (“DHEF”) and delivered, no contract or agreement
providing for a transaction between the parties shall be deemed to exist between the parties, and neither
party will be under any legal obligation of any kind whatsoever with respect to a transaction, including
any obligation to negotiate, by virtue of the LOI or any written or oral expression thereof.
Parties

Transaction
Structure

•

AAMGA Education Foundation
610 Freedom Business Center, Suite 110
King of Prussia, PA 19406

•

Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation
4131 N Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

•

Merger of the AAMGA and DHEF into a single education foundation representing
the entirety of the wholesale, specialty and surplus lines insurance industry
Business combination of foundations leveraging (1) DHEF’s 501(c)(3) corporate
structure in Missouri; (2) DHEF’s federal tax-exempt status; and (3) DHEF’s federal
tax identification number
Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of DHEF, including the change of
the corporation’s name, and new corporation’s bylaws will be filed in Missouri to
maintain not for profit, mutual benefit corporation status (for purposes of
Missouri Nonprofit Corporation Act)

•
•
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Agreement
and Plan of
Merger

•
•

Subject to each of AAMGA and DHEF being satisfied with their respective due
diligences and governing votes, they shall, as expeditiously as possible, enter into
an Agreement and Plan of Merger (Exhibit I)
Such Agreement and Plan of Merger is to record the material terms and
conditions of the merger and to include such other provisions found in documents
of that nature and as are reasonably necessary to effect the merger including as
to title, corporate standing and each of the parties having complied with their
respective continuous disclosure obligations under applicable state and federal
laws

Mutual
obligations to
implement
the merger

Each Party has:
• explored and proposed negotiated terms of a merger in good faith;
• consistently informed constituents that exploration is underway;
• consulted with each other on all material and relevant constituent
communications, including with members and third parties;
• cooperated in raising funds to support the costs associated with the merger
process;
• authorized the AAMGA/NAPSLO Foundations Merger Committee to represent
each organization in exploring the benefits, risks and feasibility of a merger
• agreed, upon approval by the governing Boards, to implement the merger as soon
as is reasonably practicable and in any event in accordance with the merger
timeline;
• provided the other Party with all information reasonably required to assess the
terms of the merger; and
• assisted the other in obtaining any approval required from any government
agency to implement the merger.

Merger
Committee

Nick Abraham – Markel
Scott Anderson – Concorde General Agency
Maureen Caviston – AmWINS
Wes Duesenberg – Southern Insurance Underwriters
Hank Haldeman – The Sullivan Group
Tom Kuzma – Nautilus Insurance Group
Bob Livingston – Western World Insurance Group
Jamie Olson – Nationwide E&S/Specialty
Coryn Thalmann – JimCor Agencies
Danielle Wade – Jackson Sumner & Associates
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Actions of
Merger
Committee

The Committee has:
• served as the exploratory committee considering the benefits, risks and feasibility
of a merger;
• with favorable exploration, developed this Merger Proposal;
• with support from the WSIA staff, been primarily responsible for drafting of all
transaction documents including the Agreement and Plan of Merger, Articles of
Incorporation, Bylaws and Board Resolutions, LOI and this Merger Proposal; and
• presented proposals and documents to the AAMGA and DHEF Boards for
appropriate reviews and approvals

Expectations
of AAMGA
and DHEF
Boards/Board
Resolutions

•

Conduct of
business prior
to merger

The Merger Proposal includes customary restrictions on AAMGA and DHEF between
signing and implementation of the merger requiring them to carry on their business in
the ordinary course and not, without the consent of the other:
• deal with or otherwise dispose of any material assets (other than in the ordinary
course);
• undertake any new activities or commit to new business opportunities or buy
assets;
• create an encumbrance over assets or borrow any funds from a third party;
• change accounting policies or alter corporate documents; and
• make or agree to payments (other than in the ordinary course of business) to
management or change management terms outside of those being considered
with the WSIA/AAMGA Education management and services agreement.

Costs and
expenses

•
•

•
•

Timeline

•
•

•
•

Each Foundation Board will consider information and documentation constituting
the Merger Proposal from the Merger Committee
The Boards serve as the governing body of their respective organizations
Subject to each Board’s approval of the Merger Proposal, each Board will approve
the submission of an Agreement and Plan of Merger for approval in the State of
Missouri

Each Party has contributed $20,000 to fund the costs and expenses incurred by
the Merger Committee in the negotiation and execution of the merger proposal
and resulting Agreement and Plan of Merger
The Committee’s spending is projected to be less than $10,000 and is focused on
outside legal resources to support the Committee’s work and effectuate the
merger
December 27 – LOI presented to AAMGA and NAPSLO Foundation Boards for
consideration
By January 22, the LOI received unanimous support from 20 of 21 AAMGA
Trustees and 12 of 15 DHEF Directors, representing 95% and 80% majorities,
respectively
January 26 – Committee teleconference to finalize merger proposal to AAMGA
and DHEF Boards, to include final plan of merger consistent with LOI
January 29 – Outside counsel to pre-file Agreement and Plan of Merger and
related corporate documents with Missouri Secretary of State for precertification
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•
•
•
•

January 29 – Merger Proposal delivered to AAMGA and DHEF Boards for
consideration through February 16
February 16 – AAMGA and DHEF Board meetings by teleconference to consider
vote on Merger Proposal
Week of February 19 – Messaging to WSIA membership regarding AAMGA and
DHEF Board votes on Merger Proposal
March 1 – WSIA Education Foundation becomes effective

Anticipated
Benefits of
Merger

1. A single foundation supporting WSIA, the exclusive trade association for the
wholesale, specialty and surplus lines insurance industry
2. One unified and larger source of financial support for education and outreach to
universities and colleges focused on developing an understanding of and
increased awareness for careers in the wholesale, specialty and surplus lines
insurance industry

Voting
Procedures
for AAMGA

The AAMGA bylaws define a quorum and majority vote of the Board of Trustees as
follows. There are no other requirements for a vote regarding changes in bylaws or
dissolution of the corporation.
One-third of the Board of Trustees shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business. The act of the majority of the trustees present at
a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of
Trustees.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board of Trustees may meet by
telephone conference call or other appropriate means of communication,
provided each trustee is afforded a reasonable opportunity to participate,
and, in addition, the Board of Trustees, in cases determined to be
appropriate by the Chair, may take legally binding action by consents in
writing signed by all of the Trustees, which unanimous vote at a meeting
duly held and may be stated as such in any certificate or document.

Voting
Procedures
for DHEF

The DHEF bylaws require a 2/3 affirmative vote of its 15 Directors as follows:
Subject to any limitations contained in the Certificate of Incorporation, in
these Bylaws or any provision of applicable law, these Bylaws may be
altered, amended, repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted by an
affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of all Directors then in
office.
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Terms of Merger Proposal
The following terms and conditions represent the key attributes of the proposed merger of AAMGA and
DHEF, subject to addressing any outstanding issues identified.
Corporate Structure and Governance
Name
• WSIA Education Foundation
• Maintain legacy of Tom Rogan Cup as component of annual golf tournament
• Maintain legacy of Derek Hughes within naming of Foundation scholarship
program or other relevant component of the merged Foundation
Website

•

Foundation website and relevant information will be available from www.wsia.org
home page

Logo/Brand
Standards

•

Branding consultant will be engaged to refine a new visual identity for the merged
foundation, leveraging the WSIA logo in the following suggested format

•

Committee recommends the proposed logo be subject to approval of the new
Foundation’s Board of Directors

Mission
Statement

The WSIA Education Foundation is the charitable organization dedicated to education
about the wholesale, specialty and surplus lines insurance industry.

Corporate
Documents

•

Outside counsel, Stinson Leonard Street LLP, was engaged to assist the
Committee and WSIA staff with the Merger Proposal
• Documents drafted by WSIA staff and refined by outside counsel include:
• Agreement and Plan of Merger (Exhibit I)
• Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, changing name of
corporation to WSIA Education Foundation (Exhibit II)
• WSIA Education Foundation Bylaws (Exhibit III)
• Proposed Resolution of the DHEF Board of Directors (Exhibit IV)
• Proposed Resolution of the AAMGA Foundation Board of Trustees (Exhibit V)
• All corporate documents have been filed with the Secretary of State in Missouri
for pre-clearance of the merger transaction
• Documents to be prepared upon approval of proposal will include:
• Articles of Merger (Missouri)

Board of
Directors

•

Board of Directors will consist of not less than three or more than 21 Directors,
with target of 15 Directors long-term
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•

Directors will be elected via Nominating Committee process, to be guided by the
objective of selecting individuals who can speak for the wholesale, specialty and
surplus lines insurance industry and have outstanding:
(1) Integrity
(2) Personal character/reputation; and
(3) A history of experience, expertise and service in and dedication to the future
success of the wholesale, specialty and surplus lines industry that may
include, but is not limited to, WSIA committee service, service with state
associations and with other organizations supporting the wholesale, specialty
and surplus lines industry
• Director terms will be three years with a maximum of four elected terms, unless
Director becomes an Officer of the Foundation
• Regarding transition of the Board upon merger:
• the Committee proposes an initial slate of 21 Directors, with terms identified
for each, comprised of the existing 15 DHEF Directors and 6 AAMGA
Foundation representatives, to ensure consistency and balance in the interests
and governance of merged Foundation (Exhibit VI)
• the Committee proposes attrition from 21 Directors in 2018-2019 to 18
Directors in 2019-2020 and 2020-2021, and targeted 15 Directors in 20212022 with the details of such transition to be determined by the merged Board
of Directors; and
• 2018-2019 terms represent period from effective date of merger through
2019 WSIA Annual Marketplace
Officers

•

•

Officers will consist of:
• President
• Vice President
• Treasurer
• Secretary (standing appointment of WSIA Executive Director)
The Committee proposes an initial slate of Officers upon merger, which should be
further considered by the merged Board of Directors (Exhibit VII)

Overview of Programs and Services
WSIA Member
• Funding of certain WSIA education programs including, but not limited to,
Education
University East, University West and Underwriting Boot Camp (WSIA to
resource and administer)
• Continue to support the CIW, CMGA and ASLI designations
Georgia State
University
Distinguished
Chair of Risk
Management and
Insurance

•

•

Committee recommends that WSIA be formally named the successor party
to the former AAMGA Memorandum of Understanding and that merged
Foundation and WSIA commit to working closely with GSU and maximize
the value of the relationship for improved industry research and
educational resources
Wes Duesenberg, Scott Anderson and WSIA staff are coordinating meeting
with GSU in conjunction with WSIA University East March 14 – 15, 2018
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Overview of Programs and Services
College Outreach
• Hosting and funding of student symposiums (e.g., Chicago, Atlanta and on
and Recruiting
the West Coast)
• Gamma Iota Sigma (GIS) Sustaining Partnership ($75,000 pledge from 2018
to 2020)
• Support of and participation in GIS International Conference
• Funding of Surplus Lines Fundamentals online program for all RMI students
whose professors assign the program as a required element of the student’s
coursework
• In coordination with WSIA Career Development Committee:
• Outreach, in coordination with WSIA, to college students in classroom
presentations and career fairs
• Maintain relationships with RMI professors
• Support of legacy AAMGA Foundation Insurance Jeopardy program
Scholarship
Program

•
•

A.M. Best Special
Report on Surplus
Lines Segment

•

Golf Tournament/
Fundraising

•

•

•

Committees

•

Continued administration of scholarships for qualified college students
($75,000 in legacy DHEF scholarships for 15 students annually)
Maintain legacy of Derek Hughes within naming of Foundation scholarship
program or other relevant component of the merged Foundation
Funding of annual A.M. Best review (including $35,000 annual grant based
on last few years of experience)
Co-sponsorship of annual A.M. Best webinar
Hosting of consolidated, annual golf tournament and fundraiser to be held
in conjunction with the WSIA Underwriting & Leadership Summit
Maintain Tom Rogan Cup as competitive component of annual tournament
The Foundation’s committee structure will include the following
committees:
• A.M. Best Review Committee
• ASLI Committee
• Finance and Investment Committee
• Fundraising Committee
• Grants, Symposiums & GIS Committee
• Nominating Committee
• Scholarship Committee

Operations, Management and Administrative Services
Management
• Existing WSIA staff team of 14 FTEs will provide management and
and
administrative services pursuant to management and services agreement
Administrative
(Exhibit VIII)
Services
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Operations, Management and Administrative Services
Historical
• AAMGA reported nets assets of $3,965,112 at June 30, 2017
Financials
• DHEF reported net assets of $7,268,168 at July 31, 2017
• Committee recommends merged Foundation focus on investing appropriate
percentage of annual net assets in programs and services that fulfill its mission,
as opposed to continuing to build wealth
• AAMGA June 30, 2017 audit report is included as Exhibit IX
• DHEF July 31, 2017 audit report is included as Exhibit X
Pro Forma
Financials

The following pro forma leverages actual fiscal year 2017 performance for both
Foundations and includes the Committee’s best estimates of the merger’s impact as
follows:

Revenues
Education Programs
Contributions
In-Kind from NAPSLO
Golf
Investment Income
Total Revenue

AAMGA Foundation
Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, 2017

NAPSLO Foundation
Fiscal Year Ending
July 31, 2017

Impact of
Merger

WSIA Education
Foundation
Pro Forma

$

$

$

$

Expenses
Education Programs
Management Fee
Golf
G&A Expenses
A.M. Best Study
GIS/Symposiums
ASLI Designation
Scholarships
Lecture Series Speaker
Total Expense
Net Revenue

244,935
245,675
152,600
333,927
977,137

208,985
200,000
58,003
74,340
541,328
$

435,809

$

197,183
96,631
153,930
557,074
1,004,818

(153,265)
(153,265)

96,631
55,095
53,282
46,187
94,130
27,789
70,000
19,015
462,129

(100,000)
(54,049)
(19,015)
(173,064)

542,689

$ 19,799

(1)

244,935
442,858
96,631
153,265
891,001
1,828,690

208,985
196,631
59,049
127,622
46,187
94,130
27,789
70,000
830,393

(2)
(3)

(4)

$

998,296

Notes:
(1) Assumes the consolidation of two legacy golf tournaments into one tournament
will reduce golf fundraising revenue by 50%.
(2) Assumes WSIA management and services agreement will reduce management
fee to legacy AAMGA Foundation and its programs and services by 50%.
However, it is important to note 2017 impact of the one-time payment of an
additional $50,000 in management fee to Accolade post November 30, 2017.
Such is not included in the above pro forma because it will not recur in future
years.
(3) Assumes the consolidation of two legacy golf tournaments into one tournament
will reduce golf tournament expense by 50%, including a $7,500 reduction in the
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Operations, Management and Administrative Services
fee to Purtzer Golf for administering the consolidated tournament (i.e., what
was a $10,000 fee for each tournament has been negotiated to be $12,500 for
the consolidated tournament in 2018).
(4) With no keynote speaker planned for any 2018 WSIA events, pro forma assumes
no spending from the E.G. Lassiter Lecture Series Fund. However, the
Committee recommends the new Board’s exploration of alternative uses for this
fund in the future, depending upon WSIA’s future planning relative to keynote
speaker sessions.
Temporarily
Restricted
Funds

•

•

•

Board
Restricted
Funds

•

From AAMGA
• Disaster Relief Fund ($29,788) –The Committee recommends that these
funds be released to unrestricted funds and used for other purposes
moving forward.
From DHEF
• E.G. Lassiter Lecture Series Fund ($346,761) – With no keynote speaker
planned for any 2018 WSIA events, pro forma assumes no spending from
the E.G. Lassiter Lecture Series Fund. However, the Committee
recommends the new Board’s exploration of alternative used for this fund
in the future.
• Kemper Pledge ($30,000)
• Russell Bond Scholarship ($17,954)
• Gary Frohn Scholarship ($57,089)
• Michael Sneed Scholarship ($3,903)
• Rolland Wiegers Scholarship ($393,511)
• Scott Polley Scholarship ($316,596)
• Dick Hull Scholarship ($129,553)
• Kevin McLaughlin Scholarship ($148,471)
The Committee recommends further refinement and improvement in process
for engaging scholarship fund sponsors in selection of scholarship recipients
From AAMGA
• UFO Education ($2,500) – Represents funds to be used to offset expense of
WSIA’s U40 Annual Meeting, pursuant to contribution from Surplus Lines
Association of Minnesota, and should be fully used each year
• WCD Chair ($251,415) – Working with Wes Duesenberg, the Committee
recommends the development of guidelines and process for scholarships
from this fund to be awarded to WSIA member firm employees to attend
WSIA education programs
• GSU Funds (deficit balance of $130,400 at June 30, 2017)– The Committee
recommends the release of any restriction of the GSU funds, which will be
managed in accordance with the Memorandum of Understanding with
Georgia State University for the Distinguished Chair of Risk Management
and Insurance

9

Privileged and Confidential
For Foundation and WSIA Directors Only
Operations, Management and Administrative Services
Due Diligence
• Independent accountants of Mayer Hoffman McCann (MHM) were engaged to
Support
assist Committee and NAPSLO staff with financial due diligence procedures
(Exhibit XI)
Fiscal Year

•

Committee proposes a calendar fiscal year to align with WSIA’s new fiscal year,
such that appropriate filings will be made to begin the new Foundation’s fiscal
year on January 1

Exhibits
I – Agreement and Plan of Merger
II – Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation
III – Bylaws
IV – Proposed Resolution of DHEF Board of Directors
V – Proposed Resolution of AAMGA Foundation Board of Trustees
VI – Board of Directors
VII – Officers
VIII – WSIA/AAMGA Foundation Management and Services Agreement
IX – AAMGA Foundation June 30, 2017 Audited Financial Statements
X – DHEF July 31, 2017 Audited Financial Statements
XI – Mayer Hoffman McCann Due Diligence Report
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AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER
THIS AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER is made and entered into this 16th day
of February, 2018 (this "Agreement"), by and between Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational
Foundation, a Missouri nonprofit corporation ("DHEF"), and AAMGA Education Foundation, a
Missouri nonprofit corporation ("AAMGA"), with DHEF and AAMGA collectively being
referred to herein as the "Parties".
RECITALS:
A.
AAMGA is a "public benefit corporation" as contemplated by § 355.881 of the
Missouri Nonprofit Corporation Act, and does not have any members.
B.
DHEF is a "public benefit corporation" as contemplated by § 355.881 of the
Missouri Nonprofit Corporation Act, and does not have any members.
C.
Each of the Parties deems it to be advisable and in the best interests of each of the
Parties to consummate a business combination of DHEF and AAMGA upon the terms and
conditions contained herein.
D.
Each of the Parties desires to enter into this Agreement to set forth the plan of
such merger, including the terms and conditions of such merger.
AGREEMENT:
In consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set
forth, the undersigned Parties do hereby agree as follows, which agreement sets forth the plan of
merger, including the terms and conditions of the merger:
ARTICLE I
The following plan of merger has been approved by the respective governing bodies of
each of the constituent parties to the Merger, and sets forth the terms and conditions of the
combination of DHEF and AAMGA into an entity to be known as "The WSIA Education
Foundation."
PLAN OF MERGER
This Plan of Merger sets forth the terms and conditions of the merger (the "Merger") of the
constituent entities to the Merger identified herein.
1.1.

Constituent Parties to the Merger. The constituent entities to the Merger are:

(a)
Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation, a Missouri not for profit
corporation ("DHEF"); and
(b)
AAMGA Education Foundation, a Missouri not for profit corporation
("AAMGA").

Exhibit I

The name under which DHEF was originally formed was “The NAPSLO Educational
Foundation,” which name was changed to “Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation” by
Amendment on December 19, 1991. AAMGA’s name has not changed from the name under which
it was formed.
1.2.
Surviving Entity of the Merger. The surviving entity of the Merger is DHEF, a
Missouri not for profit corporation (the "Surviving Corporation"). As contemplated by the
Articles of Incorporation of the Surviving Corporation referred to in Section 1.6(a), the name of
the Surviving Corporation will change to "WSIA Education Foundation" at the Effective Time
(as defined in Section 1.4).
1.3.
The Merger. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Plan of Merger
and in accordance with § 355.616 through § 355.641 of the Missouri Nonprofit Corporation Act,
and amendments thereto (the "Missouri Statute"), including the requirement of § 355.621 of the
Missouri Statute that the Missouri Attorney General be given written notice of the Merger, at the
Effective Time (as defined in Section 1.4) AAMGA shall be merged with and into DHEF for the
purpose of establishing the resulting combined entity to be known as "WSIA Education
Foundation". The Surviving Corporation of the Merger shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Missouri.
1.4.
Effective Time. Articles of merger for the Merger ("Articles of Merger") shall be
prepared and executed in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Missouri Statute and
filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Missouri. It is the intention of the Parties that the
Merger shall be effective on March 1, 2018 (the "Effective Time").
1.5.

No Members of DHEF and AAMGA.

(a)
There are no members of DHEF and, as a result, there are no membership
interests of DHEF that would be affected by the Merger.
(b)
There are no members of AAMGA and, as a result, there are no
membership interests of AAMGA that would be affected by the Merger.
1.6.
Effects of the Merger. At and after the Effective Time, the Merger will have the
effects set forth in the Missouri Statute. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, and
subject thereto, at the Effective Time all the property, rights, privileges, powers and franchises of
DHEF and AAMGA shall be vested in the Surviving Corporation, and all debts, liabilities and
duties of DHEF and AAMGA shall become the debts, liabilities and duties of the Surviving
Corporation. In addition, the Merger shall have the following effects:
(a)
Articles of Incorporation. The Articles of Incorporation of DHEF as in
effect immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be amended and restated to read in its
entirety as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto and, as so amended and restated, shall
be the Articles of Incorporation of the Surviving Corporation.
1.7.
Termination. At any time prior to the filing of the Articles of Merger, this Plan of
Merger may be abandoned:
2
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(a)

by mutual written consent of DHEF and AAMGA; or

(b)
by either DHEF or AAMGA if there shall be any law or regulation that
makes consummation of the Merger illegal or otherwise prohibited, or if any judgment,
injunction, order or decree enjoining DHEF or AAMGA from consummating the Merger
is entered and such judgment, injunction, order or decree shall become final and
nonappealable.
ARTICLE II
2.1.
Merger Filings. Concurrently herewith, the Articles of Merger shall be prepared
and executed in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Missouri Statute and thereupon
shall be filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Missouri.
2.2.
Bylaws. The Bylaws of the Surviving Corporation at the Effective Time shall be
in the form of Exhibit B attached hereto.
2.3.
Board of Directors. The directors of the Surviving Corporation at the Effective
Time shall be the persons identified on Exhibit C attached hereto, each to serve in such capacity
until the earlier of their respective resignation or removal or until their respective successors are
duly elected and qualified upon expiration of the initial term set forth opposite the respective
names of the directors on Exhibit C, as the case may be.
2.4.
Officers. The officers of the Surviving Corporation at the Effective Time shall be
the persons identified on Exhibit D attached hereto, each to serve in such capacity until the
earlier of their respective resignation or removal or until their respective successors are duly
elected and qualified, as the case may be.
2.5.
Further Action. The Parties agree to take all such actions as may be required by
law to make the Merger effective. If at any time the Surviving Corporation determines that any
further action is necessary or desirable to vest, perfect or confirm in the Surviving Corporation,
according to the terms hereof, title to any property rights of one or more of DHEF and AAMGA,
the officers of the Surviving Corporation, and each of them, shall take such action as is necessary
or desirable to vest, perfect or confirm title in such property or rights in the Surviving
Corporation, and otherwise carry out the purposes of this Agreement.
ARTICLE III
3.1.
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, all of
which shall be considered one and the same agreement and shall become effective when one or
more counterparts have been signed by each of the Parties and delivered to the other Parties, it
being understood that all Parties need not sign the same counterpart.
3.2.
Entire Agreement; No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement constitutes the
entire agreement and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, both written and oral,
between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and is not intended to confer upon
any person other than the Parties any rights or remedies hereunder.
3
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3.3.
Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Missouri without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of law
thereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by their
authorized representatives as of the date first written above.
DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL
FOUNDATION
By: ________________________________
Name: Brian Van Cleave
Title: President
AAMGA EDUCATION FOUNDATION

By: _____________________________________
Name: Scott Anderson
Title: President
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EXHIBIT A
AMENDED AND RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
[See attached]
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EXHIBIT B
BYLAWS
[See attached]
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EXHIBIT C
DIRECTORS
The names of the persons constituting the board of directors as of the Effective Time, and
the years in which their respective initial terms of office expire, are:
Year in Which
Term Expires

Name
Brian Van Cleave

2021

Bob Sargent

2019

Mike Miller

2019

Brady Kelley

2019

Nick Abraham

2020

Scott Anderson

2020

Maureen Caviston

2021

Bryan Clark

2020

Tripp Duesenberg

2019

Karen Evers

2020

Sarah Gavlick

2019

Arthur Flitner

2021

Hank Haldeman

2021

Letha Heaton

2021

Jim Keating

2021

Joan LaFrance

2019
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Ed Levy

2019

Bob Livingston

2020

David Nelson

2021

Coryn Thalmann

2019

Danielle Wade

2021
*

*
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EXHIBIT D
OFFICERS
The names of the persons constituting the officers as of the Effective Time, and each
office of each such person, are:
Name

Office

Brian Van Cleave
Robert Sargent
Mike Miller
Brady Kelley

President
Vice President
Treasurer
Secretary
*

*
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AMENDED AND
RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
THE DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION, INC.
(to be known as THE WSIA EDUCATION FOUNDATION)
The undersigned, The Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation, Inc., a
Missouri corporation (the "Corporation"), for the purpose of amending and restating the Articles
of Incorporation of the Corporation, in accordance with the Missouri Nonprofit Corporation Act,
Mo. Rev. Stat Chapter 355 (1994), does hereby make and execute these Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation and does hereby certify that:
I.
The name of the Corporation is The Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational
Foundation, Inc., and the name under which it was originally organized in the State of Missouri
was The NAPSLO Educational Foundation, Inc. As a part of the amendments pursuant to these
Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, the name of the Corporation is being changed
to "The WSIA Education Foundation".
II.
The original Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation were filed with
the Secretary of State of Missouri on November 26, 1991.
III.
The Corporation’s Bylaws provide that the Corporation shall not have any
members, voting or otherwise. The following Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of
the Corporation required the approval of, and was duly adopted on February 16, 2018 by, the
Board of Directors of the Corporation (which approval and adoption was provided at a meeting
of the Board of Directors in connection with its consideration and approval of the merger of the
Corporation with The AAMGA Education Foundation, a Missouri Nonprofit Corporation).
ARTICLE I
The name of this corporation is: The WSIA Education Foundation.
ARTICLE II
This corporation is a public benefit corporation. Such designation is made solely for the
purposes of Section 355.096.2(2) of the Missouri Nonprofit Corporation Act.
ARTICLE III
This corporation shall not have members.
ARTICLE IV
The purposes for which this corporation is organized are as follows:
a. To act as the charitable organization dedicated to education about the wholesale,
specialty and surplus lines insurance industry; and
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b. To do all and everything necessary, suitable and proper for: the accomplishment of
any purpose, the attainment of any of the objectives or the furtherance of any of the
powers hereinbefore set forth, either alone or associated with other corporations,
firms or individuals, pertaining to, growing out of, or connected with the aforesaid
business or powers, or any part or parts thereof, provided that same shall not be
inconsistent with the laws of the State of Missouri.
ARTICLE V
The period of duration of this corporation is perpetual.
ARTICLE VI
The address of this corporation’s registered office in the State of Missouri is 4131 North
Mulberry Drive, Suite 200, Kansas City, Missouri, 64116 and the name of its registered agent at
said address is: Brady R. Kelley.
ARTICLE VII
In any year in which this corporation shall be classified as a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509 of the Code:
(a) This corporation will distribute its income for such year at such time and in such
manner as not to become subject to the tax on undistributed income imposed by
Section 4942 of the Code;
(b) This corporation will not engage in any act of self-dealing as defined in Section
4941(d) of the Code;
(c) This corporation will not retain any excess business holding as defined in Section
4943(c) of the Code;
(d) This corporation will not make any investment in such manner as to be subjected to
tax under Section 4944 of the Code; and
(e) This corporation will not make any taxable expenditures as defined in Section
4945(d) of the Code.
ARTICLE VIII
The property and affairs of this corporation shall be managed by a board of directors. As
of March 1, 2018, the board of directors shall consist of 21 voting members, who shall hold
office until the annual meeting in the year set forth opposite their respective names below and
until their successors are duly elected and qualified, all as provided in the bylaws. From and
2
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after such date, the number of members of the board of directors may be changed and fixed by,
or in the manner prescribed in, the bylaws, as amended from time to time, but in no event shall
the number of members of the board of directors be less than three, and the board of directors
shall be appointed in the manner and for the terms as provided in the bylaws.
The names and addresses of the persons constituting the board of directors as of March 1,
2018 and the years in which their respective initial terms of office expire, are:

Name

Address

Year in
Which
Term Expires

Brian Van Cleave

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2021

Bob Sargent

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2019

Mike Miller

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2019

Brady Kelley

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2019

Nick Abraham

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2020

Scott Anderson

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2020

Maureen Caviston

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2021

Bryan Clark

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2020

Tripp Duesenburg

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2019

Karen Evers

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2020

Sarah Gavlick

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2019

Arthur Flitner

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2021

Hank Haldeman

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2021
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Letha Heaton

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2021

Jim Keating

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2021

Joan LaFrance

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2019

Ed Levy

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2019

Bob Livingston

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2020

David Nelson

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2021

Coryn Thalmann

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2019

Danielle Wade

4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116

2021

ARTICLE IX
A member of this corporation is not, as such, personally liable for the acts, debts,
liabilities or obligations of this corporation.
ARTICLE X
This corporation may agree to the terms and conditions upon which any director, officer,
employee or agent accepts his or her office or position and in its bylaws, by contract or in any
other manner may agree to indemnify and protect any director, officer, employee or agent of this
corporation, or any person who serves at the request of this corporation as a director, officer,
employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, to
the extent authorized or permitted by the laws (including without limitation the statutes, case law
and principles of equity) of the State of Missouri. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing:
A.
Limitation of Liability. No person shall be liable to this corporation for any loss,
damage, liability or expense suffered by it on account of any action taken or omitted to be taken
by such person as a director, officer, employee, or agent of this corporation or of any Other
Enterprise (as hereinafter defined) in which such person serves as a director, officer, employee,
or agent at the request of this corporation, if such person (i) exercised the same degree of care
and skill as a prudent person would have exercised under the circumstances in the conduct of
such person's own affairs, or (ii) took or omitted to take such action in reliance upon information,
opinions, reports, or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, prepared
or presented by:
4
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1.

one or more officers or employees of this corporation or of such Other Enterprise
whom the director, officer, employee or agent reasonably believes to be reliable
and competent in the matters presented;

2.

legal counsel, certified public accountants or other persons as to matters the
director, officer, employee, or agent reasonably believes are within the persons'
professional or expert competence; or

3.

a committee of the board of which the director, officer, employee, or agent is not
a member, as to matters within its jurisdiction, if the director, officer, employee,
or agent reasonably believes the committee merits confidence;

provided that the director, officer, employee, or agent did not, at the time of such reliance, have
knowledge concerning the matter in question that made such reliance unwarranted.
B.
Indemnification, Generally. In addition to and without limiting the rights to
indemnification and advancement of expenses specifically provided for in the other paragraphs
of this Article X, this corporation shall indemnify and advance expenses to each person who is or
was serving in an Indemnifiable Capacity (as hereinafter defined) to the full extent permitted by
the laws of the State of Missouri as in effect on the date of the effectiveness of this Article X and
as may hereafter be amended.
C.
Right to Indemnification. This corporation shall indemnify each person who has
been or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed
action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, investigative or appellate
(regardless of whether such action, suit or proceeding is by or in the right of this corporation or
by third parties) by reason of the fact that such person is or was serving in an Indemnifiable
Capacity against all liabilities and expenses, including, without limitation, judgments, amounts
paid in settlement, attorneys' fees, ERISA excise taxes or penalties, fines and other expenses,
actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or
proceeding (including without limitation the investigation, defense, settlement or appeal of such
action, suit or proceeding); provided, however, that this corporation shall not be required to
indemnify or advance expenses to any person from or on account of such person's conduct which
was finally adjudged to have been knowingly fraudulent, deliberately dishonest or willful
misconduct; provided, further, that this corporation shall not be required to indemnify or advance
expenses to any person in connection with an action, suit or proceeding initiated by such person
unless the initiation of such action, suit or proceeding was authorized in advance by the board of
directors of this corporation. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment,
order, settlement, conviction or under a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of
itself, create a presumption that such person's conduct was finally adjudged to have been
knowingly fraudulent, deliberately dishonest or willful misconduct. Any indemnification under
paragraph (b) or advancement of expenses in connection with an action by or in the right of this
corporation shall be reported to the members to the extent and in the manner required by the
Missouri Nonprofit Corporation Act.
5
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D.
Enforcement of Indemnification. In the event this corporation refuses to
indemnify any person who may be entitled to be indemnified or to have expenses advanced
hereunder, such person shall have the right to maintain an action in any court of competent
jurisdiction against this corporation to determine whether or not such person is entitled to such
indemnification or advancement of expenses hereunder. If such court action is successful and
the person is determined to be entitled to such indemnification or advancement of expenses, such
person shall be reimbursed by this corporation for all fees and expenses (including attorneys'
fees) actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any such action (including without
limitation the investigation, defense, settlement or appeal of such action).
E.
Advancement of Expenses. Expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and
reasonably incurred by a person who may be entitled to indemnification hereunder in defending
an action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, investigative or appellate,
shall be paid by this corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or
proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such person to repay such amount
if it shall ultimately be determined that such person is not entitled to indemnification by this
corporation. In no event shall any advance be made in instances where the board, members of
this corporation or independent legal counsel reasonably determines that such person would not
be entitled to indemnification hereunder.
F.
Non-Exclusivity. The indemnification and the advancement of expenses provided
by this Article X shall not be exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking
indemnification or advancement of expenses may be entitled under any statute, under these
articles of incorporation, any bylaw, any agreement, vote of members of this corporation or
disinterested directors, policy of insurance or otherwise, both as to action in their official
capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding their respective offices, and shall not
limit in any way any right which this corporation may have to make additional indemnifications
with respect to the same or different persons or classes of persons. The indemnification and
advancement of expenses provided by, or granted pursuant to, this Article X shall continue as to
a person who has ceased to serve in an Indemnifiable Capacity and shall inure to the benefit of
the heirs, executors, administrators and estate of such a person.
G.
Insurance. This corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of
any person who is or was a director, officer, agent or employee of this corporation, or is or was
serving at the request of this corporation as a director, officer, agent or employee of any Other
Enterprise, against any liability asserted against such person and incurred by such person in any
such capacity, or arising out of such person's status as such, whether or not this corporation
would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability under the provisions of this
Article X.
H.
Vesting of Rights. The rights granted or created hereby shall be vested in each
person entitled to indemnification hereunder as a bargained for, contractual condition of such
person's serving or having served in an Indemnifiable Capacity and while this Article X may be
amended or repealed, no such amendment or repeal shall release, terminate or adversely affect
the rights of such person under this Article X with respect to any act taken or the failure to take
any act by such person prior to such amendment or repeal or with respect to any action, suit or
6
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proceeding with respect to such act or failure to act filed before or after such amendment or
repeal.
I.

Definitions. For purposes of this Article X:

1.

References to "this corporation" shall, if and only if the board of directors shall
determine, include, in addition to the resulting or surviving corporation, any
constituent corporation (including any constituent of a constituent) absorbed in a
consolidation or merger which, if its separate existence had continued, would
have had power and authority to indemnify its directors or officers or persons
serving at the request of such constituent corporation as a director, officer,
employee, or agent of any Other Enterprise, so that any person who is or was a
director or officer of such constituent corporation, or is or was serving at the
request of such constituent corporation as a director, officer, employee, or agent
of any Other Enterprise, shall stand in the same position under the provisions of
this Article X with respect to the resulting or surviving corporation as such person
would have with respect to such constituent corporation if its separate existence
had continued;

2.

References to serving in an "Indemnifiable Capacity" shall mean service by a
person as a director or officer of this corporation or service by a person at this
corporation's request as a director, officer, employee, or agent of any Other
Enterprise (as hereinafter defined);

3.

References to "Other Enterprises" or "Other Enterprise" shall include without
limitation any other corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint
venture, trust or employee benefit plan;

4.

References to "fines" shall include any excise taxes assessed on a person with
respect to an employee benefit plan;

5.

References to "defense" shall include investigations of any threatened, pending or
completed action, suit or proceeding as well as appeals thereof and shall also
include any defensive assertion of a cross claim or counterclaim; and

6.

References to "serving at the request of this corporation" shall include any service
as a director, officer, employee, or agent of a corporation which imposes duties
on, or involves services by, such director, officer, employee, or agent with respect
to an employee benefit plan, its participants, or beneficiaries. Unless the board of
directors of this corporation shall determine otherwise, any director or officer of
this corporation who shall serve as a director, officer, employee, or agent of any
Other Enterprise of which this corporation, directly or indirectly, is a member,
shareholder or creditor, or in which this corporation is in any way interested, shall
be presumed to be serving as such director, officer, employee, or agent at the
request of this corporation. In all other instances where any person shall serve as
a director, officer, employee, or agent of any Other Enterprise, if it is not
7
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otherwise established that such person is or was serving as such director, officer,
employee, or agent at the request of this corporation, the board of directors of this
corporation shall determine whether such person is or was serving at the request
of this corporation, and it shall not be necessary to show any actual or prior
request for such service, which determination shall be final and binding on this
corporation and the person seeking indemnification or advancement of expenses.
J.
Severability. If any provision of this Article X or the application of any such
provision to any person or circumstance is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason
whatsoever, the remaining provisions of this Article X and the application of such provision to
other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby and to the fullest extent possible the
court finding such provision invalid, illegal or unenforceable shall modify and construe the
provision so as to render it valid and enforceable as against all persons or entities and to give the
maximum possible protection to persons subject to indemnification hereby within the bounds of
validity, legality and enforceability. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, if any
person who is or was serving in an Indemnifiable Capacity is entitled under any provision of this
Article X to indemnification by this corporation for some or a portion of the judgments, amounts
paid in settlement, attorneys' fees, ERISA excise taxes or penalties, fines or other expenses
actually and reasonably incurred by any such person in connection with any threatened, pending
or completed action, suit or proceeding (including without limitation, the investigation, defense,
settlement or appeal of such action, suit or proceeding), whether civil, criminal, administrative,
investigative or appellate, but not, however, for all of the total amount thereof, this corporation
shall nevertheless indemnify such person for the portion thereof to which such person is entitled.
ARTICLE XI
Upon dissolution of this corporation and after discharging all liabilities and obligations of
this corporation (or making adequate provision therefor) and after the return, transfer or
conveyance of all assets requiring return, transfer or conveyance thereof because of the
dissolution of this corporation and after taking any other action required by law, any remaining
assets of this corporation shall be distributed exclusively for the accomplishment of the purposes
of this corporation in such manner, or to one or more organizations organized and operated
exclusively for business league or similar purposes as shall at the time qualify each such
organization as an exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue
law), as the Board of Directors shall determine. In the event of dissolution of this corporation,
and only upon resolution of the Board of Directors, its corporate assets will be used to support
one or more charitable organizations, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3)
to be used consistently with the charitable purpose of the Foundation, with primary consideration
to be given to charitable organizations that support wholesale and specialty insurance related
education, career development, scholarship and internship programs similar to that administered
by the Wholesale & Specialty Insurance Association. The activities of this corporation shall at all
times be conducted in a manner consistent with the exclusively charitable and educational
purposes of this corporation.
8
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ARTICLE XII
This corporation reserves the right to alter, amend or repeal any provision contained in its
Articles of Incorporation in the manner now or hereafter prescribed by the statutes of the State of
Missouri, and all rights and powers conferred herein are granted subject to this reservation.
*

*

*

V.
The Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation correctly sets forth
the Articles of Incorporation as theretofore amended, and they hereby supersede the original
Articles of Incorporation and all amendments thereto.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, these Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation
have been executed on behalf of the Corporation by its President and attested by its Secretary as
of March 1, 2018.
DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL
FOUNDATION
By:
(CORPORATE SEAL)
ATTEST:
______________________________
Brady R. Kelley, Secretary

9

______________________________
Brian Van Cleave, President
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BYLAWS
of
WSIA EDUCATION FOUNDATION
A Missouri Not for Profit Corporation
ARTICLE I — NAME
A. The name of the corporation is the WSIA Education Foundation, Inc. (the “Corporation”). Wholesale
& Specialty Insurance Association, (“WSIA”) is the professional trade association representing the
wholesale, specialty and surplus lines insurance industry and the wholesale insurance distribution
system, and it plays an important role in supporting the Corporation, its mission and operations.
ARTICLE II — OFFICE OF THE CORPORATION
A. Principal Office — The principal offices for the transaction of the activities, affairs and business of the
Corporation shall be located in the City of Kansas City, State of Missouri.
B. Other Offices — The Corporation may have such other offices, either within or outside the State of
Missouri, as the Board of Directors may determine or as the affairs of the Corporation may require
from time to time.
ARTICLE III — MEMBERS
A. Members Prohibited — The Corporation shall not have any members.
B. Effect of Prohibition — Any action which would otherwise require approval by a majority of all
members or approval by the members shall require only approval of the Board of Directors. All rights
which would otherwise vest in members under the Missouri General Not For Profit Corporation Law
shall vest in the directors.
ARTICLE IV — DIRECTORS
A. Number — The Board of Directors may, from time to time, by majority vote of the entire Board,
increase or decrease the size of the Board of Directors to not less than three (3) or more than twentyone (21) directors, with the preferred size being fifteen (15), and fill any new positions or vacancies
on the Board. Until the annual meeting held in 2019, the Board of Directors shall be comprised of
those individuals named as directors in the articles of incorporation (and, as applicable, any individual
elected to fill a vacancy on the Board of Directors in accordance with paragraph I of this Article).
B. Term — Each director named in the articles of incorporation shall hold office until the annual
meeting held in the year set forth opposite such director’s name in the articles of incorporation and
until the term of office of such director’s successor has commenced, or until such director’s earlier
death, incapacity, disqualification, resignation or removal. At the annual meetings held in 2019, 2020
and 2021 respectively, new directors shall be elected to succeed the directors named in the articles of
incorporation whose terms expire with such annual meeting, except that the new directors shall not
be elected to succeed (i) three (3) of the directors named in the articles of incorporation whose terms
expire with such annual meeting in 2019, and (ii) three (3) of the directors named in the articles of
incorporation whose term expires with such annual meeting in 2021, in each case, with the intent and
result being that the size of the Board of Directors shall be correspondingly reduced at each such
annual meeting. At every annual meeting after the annual meeting held in 2021, new directors shall
be elected to succeed those directors whose terms expire with such annual meeting. The term of
office for each elected director shall be three years except as provided in this paragraph B, with the
1
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intent being that approximately one-third (1/3) of such directors shall be elected each year. A
director may serve no more than four (4) consecutive terms as director, with the exception of the
WSIA Executive Director. Terms of the directors shall be staggered so that the terms of
approximately one third (1/3) of the directors shall expire each year at the meeting at which elections
are held. The initial term of a director elected to the Board as a result of an increase in the number of
authorized directors shall be determined by the Board in a manner that is consistent with the
staggered term requirement of this paragraph B.
C. Board of Directors Firm Affiliation — There shall be no more than two (2) directors from the same
or affiliated firms. The Board will have ninety (90) days to remedy any director transition that results
in more than two (2) directors from the same or affiliated firms.
D. Compensation — The directors shall serve without compensation except that they may be allowed and
paid their actual and necessary expenses incurred in attending the meetings of the Board, and with
respect to other activities for the Corporation as may be authorized by the Board. This shall not be
deemed to preclude payment of reasonable and just compensation to any director for services rendered
to or for the Corporation in a capacity other than that of director or payment for or reimbursement of
expenses incurred by a director on behalf of the Corporation in effecting any of its purposes as shall
be fixed by the resolutions of the Board of Directors.
E. Meetings
1. Call of Meetings — Regular or special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by
resolutions of the Board or the written consent of a majority of the members thereof.
2. Place of Meetings — All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at such place as may be
designated from time to time by the Board of Directors.
3. Time of Regular Meetings — Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on such
date and time as may be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors. Such regular
meetings shall be held, at least annually, for the purposes of transacting such proper business as
may come before the meeting including the election of directors. If the election of directors shall
not occur at any such meeting, the Board shall cause the election of the directors to be held at a
special meeting called and held as soon as it is reasonably possible after the adjournment of the
regular meeting.
4. Notice of Meetings — Notice of meetings of the Board of Directors shall be given by the President
or the Secretary by mail or electronic notice of the time and place of the meeting, and in case of a
Special Meeting, the purpose for which it is called, at least seven (7) days before the day of such
meeting.
5. Waiver of Notice — Whenever notice is required to be given to any director or member of a
committee of directors under any provision of the Missouri General Not for Profit Corporation
Law, the articles of incorporation or these Bylaws, a written waiver of such notice, signed by the
person entitled to notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed
equivalent to notice. Attendance of a person at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of
such meeting, except when the person attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at
the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully
called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or
special meeting of the directors, or committee of directors, need be specified in any written waiver
of notice.
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6. Meetings by Telephone — Members of the Board of Directors, or any committee designated by
such Board, may participate in a meeting of such Board or committee by means of conference
telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all person participating in the
meeting can hear each other, and participation in a meeting pursuant to this paragraph shall
constitute presence in person at such meeting.
7. Quorum— Except as may be otherwise expressly provided in these Bylaws or by law, a quorum
of the entire Board of Directors shall be a majority of the number of directors in office immediately
before a meeting begins.
8. Transactions of the Board of Directors — Except as otherwise provided in the articles of
incorporation, in these Bylaws, or by law, every act or decision done or made by the majority of
directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present is the act of the Board;
provided, however, that any meeting at which a quorum was initially present may continue to
transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors if any action taken is approved by at
least a majority of the required quorum for such meeting, or such greater number as is required by
law, the articles of incorporation, or these Bylaws.
9. Conduct of Meetings — The President shall preside at meetings of the Board of Directors. The
Secretary of the Corporation or, in the Secretary’s absence, any person appointed by the presiding
officer, shall act as Secretary of the meeting. In the absence of the President, the Vice President or
any director selected by the directors shall preside at meetings of the Board of Directors.
10. Adjournment — A majority of the directors present, whether or not a quorum is present, may
adjourn any meeting to another time and place. If the meeting is adjourned for more than twentyfour (24) hours, notice of the adjournment to another time or place must be given prior to the
time of the adjourned meeting to the directors who were not present at the time of the
adjournment.
F. Action Without a Meeting — Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board may be taken
without a meeting, if two-thirds (2/3) of the directors consent in writing to such action. Notice of such
action shall be provided to the Board of Directors by the President or Secretary by mail or electronic
notice, which shall provide information about the action to be taken, at least seven (7) days before
written consents are requested. Such written consent or consents may be electronic and shall be filed
with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board. Such written consent shall have the same force and
effect as the unanimous vote of such directors.
G. Removal of Directors — Any director may be removed with or without cause by an affirmative vote
of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of all the directors then in office.
H. Resignation of Director — Any director may resign effective upon giving written notice to the Board
of Directors, the President, or the Secretary, unless the notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness
of such resignation. If the resignation is effective at a future time, a successor may be elected to take
office when the resignation becomes effective.
I.

Vacancies on the Board of Directors
1. Causes — Vacancies on the Board of Directors shall exist on the death, resignation, or removal of
any director; whenever the number of directors authorized is increased; and on the failure in any
election to elect the full number of directors authorized.
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2. Filling Vacancies — Vacancies on the Board of Directors shall be filled by election by a majority
of the remaining directors then in office even if less than a quorum, or by the sole remaining
director. A successor director shall serve for the unexpired term of his/her predecessor.
ARTICLE V — OFFICERS
A. Number and Titles — The officers of this Corporation shall be a President, a Vice-President, a
Secretary, a Treasurer, and such other officers with such titles and duties as shall be elected by the
Board. Any number of offices may be held by the same person, provided, that neither the Secretary
nor the Treasurer may serve concurrently as the President.
B. Appointment and Resignation — Each officer shall be elected by the Board from currently serving
Board members and serve for a period of two (2) years and until his/her successor has been elected
and qualified, subject to the rights, if any, of such officer under any contract of employment. The
offices of President and Vice President shall serve no more than three (3) consecutive terms in any one
office. Any officer may resign at any time upon written notice to the Corporation without prejudice to
the rights, if any, of the Corporation under any contract to which the officer is a party.
C. The President shall fill on an acting basis, by appointment from the Board of Directors, any vacancy
occurring during the term of any officer. Such appointment shall be for the unexpired term of the
vacant office.
D. Duties of the President — The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation and
shall, subject to the supervision and direction of the Board of Directors, supervise and control the
affairs of the Corporation. The President shall perform all duties incidental to the office and such other
duties as provided in the Bylaws or as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors.
E. Duties of the Vice-President — At the request of the President, or in the President’s absence, at the
request of the Board, the Vice-President shall perform all of the duties of the President and so acting
shall have all the powers of and be subject to all restrictions upon the President. The Vice-President
shall perform such other duties as may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors or by
the President.
F. Duties of the Secretary — The Secretary shall keep minutes of all meetings of the Board, and shall be
the custodian of the corporate records, and shall perform all duties incidental to the office of Secretary
and such other duties as may be required by law, the articles of incorporation or these Bylaws, or as
may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors or by the President.
G. Duties of the Treasurer —The Treasurer shall attend to the following:
1. Books of Account — The Treasurer shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained,
adequate and correct books and records of accounts of the properties and business transactions
of the Corporation, including such matters as are customarily included in financial statements.
2. Deposit and Disbursement of Money and Valuables — The Treasurer shall deposit all money and
other valuables in the name and to the credit of the Corporation with such depositories as may be
designated by the Board of Directors; shall disburse the funds of the Corporation as may be
ordered by the Board of Directors; shall render to the President and the directors, whenever they
request it, an accounting of the financial transactions and condition of the Corporation; and shall
have other powers in performing such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors
or by the Bylaws.
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3. Bond — If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall give the Corporation a bond,
at the expense of the Corporation in the amount and with the surety or sureties specified by the
Board for honesty and faithful performance of duties of his/her office.
ARTICLE VI — COMMITTEES
A. Committees of Directors — The Board of Directors may, by resolution adopted by a majority of
directors then in office, designate one (1) or more committees, each consisting of two (2) or more
directors, to serve at the pleasure of the Board. Any officer or officers or a person who is neither an
officer nor a director may also serve on any committee, at the pleasure of the Board, provided that
directors constitute at least a majority of each committee. The President shall be an ex officio member
of each committee so established.
B. Meetings and Actions of Committees — Meetings and actions of committees shall be governed by,
and held and taken in accordance with, the provisions of Article IV of these Bylaws, concerning
meetings of directors, with such changes in the context of those Bylaws as are necessary to substitute
the committee and its members for the Board of Directors and its members, except that the time for
regular meetings of committees may be determined either by resolution of the Board of Directors or
by resolution of the committee. Special meetings of the committees may also be called by resolution
of the Board of Directors or by resolution of the committee. Notice of special meetings of committees
shall also be given to any and all committee members, who shall have the right to attend all meetings
of the committees. Minutes shall be kept of each meeting of any committee and shall be filed with the
corporate records. The Board of Directors may adopt rules for the governance of any committee not
inconsistent with the provisions of these Bylaws.
C. Until the annual meeting held in 2019, the Executive Committee shall consist of the individuals named
in the Articles of Incorporation as determined by the Board of Directors. From and after the annual
meeting held in 2019, the Executive Committee shall consist of the officers elected by the Board of
Directors. The President shall appoint the Nominating Committee responsible for the selection of
director and officer candidates. The Nominating Committee shall consist of five (5) persons, including
at least two (2) Board members and at least one (1) WSIA Past President. The President shall not serve
on the Nominating Committee. The Nominating Committee shall:
1. Be charged with proposing a slate of (1) directors to be presented to the Board of Directors on an
annual basis and (2) officers to be presented to the Board of Directors on a bi-annual basis. The
Nominating Committee’s proposed slate shall be consistent with Articles IV and VI with nominees
that will perpetuate the Board as an effective, credible and representative governing body of the
Corporation with dedication to encouraging the educational development of all those interested in
the wholesale and specialty insurance business and creating an understanding of the wholesale and
specialty insurance market.
2. Cultivate and develop talent and expertise within a framework that (1) ensures the right balance of
turnover and retention of key director contributions and (2) ensures effective succession planning
for directors and officers among their terms on the Board and/or service to the Corporation’s
committees.
3. Select individual nominees who can speak for the wholesale, specialty and surplus lines insurance
industry and have outstanding:
i. Integrity;
ii. Personal character/reputation; and
5
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iii. A history of experience, expertise and service in and dedication to the future success of the
wholesale, specialty and surplus lines insurance industry that may include, but is not limited
to, WSIA committee service, service with state associations and with other organizations
supporting the surplus lines industry.
4. Seek input from and invite WSIA’s Immediate Past President to participate in the Nominating
Committee process, given his/her experience in identifying top candidates among the WSIA
membership for the WSIA Board.
5. Confirm that each nominee slated for a director position is able and willing to serve in the position
for which he or she is nominated.
6. Solicit suggestions for director candidates through outreach to the wholesale, specialty and surplus
lines insurance community, including the WSIA Board of Directors.
7. Communicate its proposed director and officer nominees to the Corporation and WSIA Boards
at least 45 days prior to the Corporation’s Board’s election. Such communication will be shared in
the spirit of coordination between the Corporation and WSIA Boards.
D. The President shall appoint the Finance and Investment Committee responsible for oversight and
management of the Corporation’s finances and investments. The Finance and Investment Committee
shall consist of the Treasurer and any combination of Board members or other WSIA members with
finance, investment and/or audit expertise to assist the Board in overseeing the Corporation’s longterm financial health, management of assets and investments, and the annual independent audit
process.
ARTICLE VII — CORPORATE RECORDS, REPORTS AND SEAL
A. Minutes of Meetings — The Corporation shall keep at its principal office a record of minutes of all
meetings of the Board of Directors, a record of all actions taken by the Board of Directors without a
meeting, and a record of all actions taken by committees of the Board of Directors.
B. Books of Account — The Corporation shall keep and maintain full and correct accounts of its
properties and business transactions.
C. Inspection of Records by Directors — The books of account shall at all reasonable times be open to
inspection by a director. Every director shall have the absolute right at any right reasonable time to
inspect all books and records. Inspection may be made either in person or by agent or attorney, and
the right of inspection includes the right to make extracts.
D. Annual Report and Financial Statement — The Board of Directors may provide for the preparation
and submission to the directors of a written annual report including a financial statement accompanied
by an auditor’s report by an independent certified public accountant designated by the Board of
Directors.
E. Corporate Seal — The Board of Directors may adopt, use, and at will alter, a corporate seal. Such seal,
if adopted, may be affixed to any and all corporate instruments, but the failure to affix it shall not affect
the validity of any such instrument.
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ARTICLE VIII — EFFECT DATE OF BYLAWS
A. These Bylaws shall become effective immediately.
ARTICLE IX — AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS
A. Subject to any limitations contained in the Certificate of Incorporation, in these Bylaws or any
provision of applicable law, these Bylaws may be altered, amended, repealed and new Bylaws may be
adopted by an affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of all directors then in office.
ARTICLE X — CERTIFICATE AND INSPECTION OF BYLAWS
A. The original or a copy of these Bylaws as amended to date, certified by the Secretary of the Corporation,
shall be recorded and maintained in the principal office of the Corporation, and such record shall be
open to inspection by the directors at all reasonable times during office hours.
ARTICLE XI — PROHIBITION AGAINST SHARING CORPORATE PROFITS AND ASSETS
A. No private individual, whether connected with this Corporation or otherwise, shall receive at any time
any of the net earnings or pecuniary profit from the operations of the Corporation; provided that,
subject to the articles of incorporation and these Bylaws this provision shall not prevent payment to
any such person of reasonable and just compensation for services rendered to or for the Corporation
or the payment for or reimbursement of reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in effecting any
of its purposes, providing the same shall be authorized by resolutions of the Board of Directors; and
no such person or persons shall be entitled to share in the distribution of, and shall not receive, any of
the corporate assets upon dissolution of the Corporation. In the event of dissolution of the
Corporation, and only upon resolution of the Board of Directors, its corporate assets will be used to
support one or more charitable organizations, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code Section
501(c)(3) to be used consistently with the charitable purpose of the Corporation, with primary
consideration to be given to charitable organizations that support wholesale, specialty and surplus lines
insurance related educational, career development, scholarship and internship programs similar to that
administered by WSIA. The activities of the Corporation shall at all times be conducted in a manner
consistent with the exclusively charitable and educational purposes of the Corporation.
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RESOLUTIONS
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION
The following resolutions were adopted by the Board of Directors of the Derek
Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation, a Missouri not for profit corporation, on February 16,
2018:
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Board of Directors of the Derek Hughes/NAPSLO
Educational Foundation that the Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation merge with
the AAMGA Education Foundation, a Missouri not for profit corporation, for the benefit of
creating:
1. A single, rebranded education foundation representing the entirety of today's wholesale,
specialty and surplus lines insurance market and promoting the value of wholesale
distribution;
2. Enhanced, broadened support and curriculum of education and professional development
that meets the needs of WSIA member employees through all phases of career
development;
3. Enhanced support for college outreach and talent recruiting initiatives and development for
WSIA members;
4. Enhanced support and development of educational scholarships, university endowments
and college symposiums; and
5. Synergy and cost savings by combining the management of two existing Foundations.
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of The Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational
Foundation agree the purpose of the merger is to establish the resulting combined entity to be
known as "The WSIA Education Foundation;"
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of The Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational
Foundation support and agree that the WSIA Education Foundation shall be a charitable
organization dedicated to education about the wholesale, specialty and surplus lines insurance
industry.
WHEREAS, a form of an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Merger Agreement") to
be entered into by the Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation, and AAMGA
Education Foundation has been prepared and presented to each member of the Board of
Directors of the Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation, which Merger Agreement
sets forth a plan of merger (the "Plan of Merger") with respect to the merger (the "Merger") of
the Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation with the AAMGA Education
Foundation;
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WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has reviewed, considered and discussed the
advantages and disadvantages of the Merger upon the terms and subject to the conditions set
forth in the Merger Agreement, including the Plan of Merger; and
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has determined that the Merger, upon the terms
and subject to the conditions in the Merger Agreement, including the Plan of Merger, is
advisable and in the best interests of Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation.
NOW, THEREFORE, RESOLVED, that the Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational
Foundation be merged with the AAMGA Education Foundation pursuant to the Merger
Agreement, and that the Merger Agreement, including the Plan of Merger, be, and it hereby is,
approved, adopted and authorized by this Board of Directors, such Merger Agreement to be in
substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Board of Directors, with such changes,
additions and deletions as the officer executing the same shall approve, the execution and
delivery thereof to be conclusive evidence of the approval by such officer of such change,
addition or deletion.
FURTHER RESOLVED, the President or any officer of Derek Hughes/NAPSLO
Educational Foundation, and each of them hereby is, authorized and empowered in the name
and on behalf of Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation to execute and deliver the
Merger Agreement.
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Merger and the Plan of Merger as aforesaid, the
officers of the Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation be, and each of them hereby
is, authorized and empowered to do or cause to be done all such acts and actions as are deemed
necessary or appropriate by them to carry out the Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational
Foundation’s obligations under the Merger Agreement and to carry out the purpose and intent
of the foregoing resolutions, including, without limitation, the preparation and filing with
appropriate governmental authorities of such articles, certificates, notices and applications as
may be required as a result of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement
(including filing articles of merger with the applicable Missouri governmental authorities).
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RESOLUTIONS
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
AAMGA EDUCATION FOUNDATION
The following resolutions were adopted by the Board of Trustees of the AAMGA
Education Foundation, a Missouri not for profit corporation, on February 16, 2018:
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Board of Trustees of the AAMGA Education
Foundation that the AAMGA Education Foundation merge with the Derek Hughes/NAPSLO
Educational Foundation, a Missouri not for profit corporation, for the benefit of creating:
1. A single, rebranded education foundation representing the entirety of today's wholesale,
specialty and surplus lines insurance market and promoting the value of wholesale
distribution;
2. Enhanced, broadened support and curriculum of education and professional development
that meets the needs of WSIA member employees through all phases of career
development;
3. Enhanced support for college outreach and talent recruiting initiatives and development for
WSIA members;
4. Enhanced support and development of educational scholarships, university endowments
and college symposiums; and
5. Synergy and cost savings by combining the management of two existing Foundations.
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the AAMGA Education Foundation, agree the
purpose of the merger is to establish the resulting combined entity to be known as "The WSIA
Education Foundation;"
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the AAMGA Education Foundation support and
agree that the WSIA Education Foundation shall be a charitable organization dedicated to
education about the wholesale, specialty and surplus lines insurance industry.
WHEREAS, a form of an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Merger Agreement") to
be entered into by the AAMGA Education Foundation and Derek Hughes/NAPSLO
Educational Foundation, has been prepared and presented to each member of the Board of
Trustees of the AAMGA Education Foundation, which Merger Agreement sets forth a plan of
merger (the "Plan of Merger") with respect to the merger (the "Merger") of the AAMGA
Education Foundation with the Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation;
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has reviewed, considered and discussed the
advantages and disadvantages of the Merger upon the terms and subject to the conditions set
forth in the Merger Agreement, including the Plan of Merger; and
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WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has determined that the Merger, upon the terms and
subject to the conditions in the Merger Agreement, including the Plan of Merger, is advisable
and in the best interests of the AAMGA Education Foundation.
NOW, THEREFORE, RESOLVED, that the AAMGA Education Foundation be
merged with the Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation pursuant to the Merger
Agreement, and that the Merger Agreement, including the Plan of Merger, be, and it hereby is,
approved, adopted and authorized by this Board of Trustees, such Merger Agreement to be in
substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Board of Trustees, with such changes,
additions and deletions as the officer executing the same shall approve, the execution and
delivery thereof to be conclusive evidence of the approval by such officer of such change,
addition or deletion.
FURTHER RESOLVED, the President or any officer of the AAMGA Education
Foundation, and each of them hereby is, authorized and empowered in the name and on behalf
of the AAMGA Education Foundation to execute and deliver the Merger Agreement.
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Merger and the Plan of Merger as aforesaid, the
officers of the AAMGA Education Foundation be, and each of them hereby is, authorized and
empowered to do or cause to be done all such acts and actions as are deemed necessary or
appropriate by them to carry out the AAMGA Education Foundation’s obligations under the
Merger Agreement and to carry out the purpose and intent of the foregoing resolutions,
including, without limitation, the preparation and filing with appropriate governmental
authorities of such articles, certificates, notices and applications as may be required as a result
of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement (including filing articles of merger
with the applicable Missouri governmental authorities).
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WSIA Education Foundation Board of Directors
Proposed Initial Board Terms
January 29, 2018

Name
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

Brian Van Cleave
Bob Sargent
Mike Miller
Brady Kelley
Nick Abraham
Scott Anderson
Maureen Caviston
Bryan Clark
Tripp Duesenberg
Karen Evers
Sarah Gavlick
Arthur Flitner
Hank Haldeman
Letha Heaton
Jim Keating
Joan LaFrance
Ed Levy
Bob Livingston
David Nelson
Coryn Thalmann
Danielle Wade

Company
Euclid Program Managers
Tennant Risk Services
Insurance Industry Consultant
WSIA
Markel
Concord General Agency
AmWINS
Gorst & Compass
Southern Insurance Underwriters
Nautilus
Markel
The Institutes
The Sullivan Group
Admiral
The Keating Companies
General Reinsurance Corporation
RPS Scottsdale
Western World/Validus
Nationwide E&S
JimCor Agencies
Jackson Sumner & Associates

Location
Itasca, IL
West Hartford, CT
Scottsdale, AZ
Kansas City, MO
Alpharetta, GA
Fargo, ND
Stamford, CT
Chatsworth, CA
Alpharetta, GA
Scottsdale, AZ
Red Bank, NJ
Malvern, PA
Los Angeles, CA
Mt. Laurel, NJ
Phoenix, AZ
Stamford, CT
Scottsdale, AZ
Franklin Lakes, NJ
Scottsdale, AZ
Montvale, NJ
Boone, NC

Legacy
Organization

Initial
Term
Ends

NAPSLO
NAPSLO
NAPSLO
NAPSLO
NAPSLO
AAMGA
NAPSLO
AAMGA
AAMGA
AAMGA
NAPSLO
NAPSLO
NAPSLO
NAPSLO
NAPSLO
NAPSLO
NAPSLO
NAPSLO
AAMGA
NAPSLO
AAMGA

2021
2019
2019
2019
2020
2020
2021
2020
2019
2020
2019
2021
2021
2021
2021
2019
2019
2020
2021
2019
2021
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WSIA Education Foundation Board of Directors
Proposed Board Transition 2018 to 2022
January 29, 2018
Proposed Transition
Legacy Foundation
1
2

NAPSLO
AAMGA

2018-2019

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

15
6

13
5

13
5

11
4

21

18

18

15

Exhibit VII

WSIA Education Foundation
Proposed Officers
January 29, 2018

Name
Brian Van Cleave
Bob Sargent
Mike Miller
Brady Kelley

Officer Position
President
Vice President
Treasurer
Secretary
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Financial Statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Board of Trustees
AAMGA Education Foundation
King of Prussia, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the AAMGA Education Foundation (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the AAMGA Education Foundation as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited the AAMGA Education Foundation's 2016 financial statements, and we expressed
an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated November 10, 2016. In
our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2016, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
November 21, 2017
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AAMGA EDUCATION FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2017 with comparative totals for 2016
2017
ASSETS
Cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Investments

$

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue

292,394
6,435
10,750
3,743,926

2016
$

130,015
33,466
5,419
3,431,937

$ 4,053,505

$ 3,600,837

$

$

31,704
56,689

13,108
58,425

88,393

71,533

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

3,935,324
29,788

3,496,516
32,788

Total net assets

3,965,112

3,529,304

$ 4,053,505

$ 3,600,837

Total liabilities

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes
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AAMGA EDUCATION FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year ended June 30, 2017 with comparative totals for 2016
Unrestricted
REVENUE AND SUPPORT
Contributions
Continuing education income
Other income
Investment income (loss)
Net assets released from restrictions

$

395,675
244,936
2,938
311,988
3,000

Total revenue and support
EXPENSES
Continuing education
Supporting services
Management and general
Fundraising
Total expenses
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS
Beginning of year
End of year

Totals

Temporarily
Restricted
$

(3,000)

2017
$

395,675
244,936
2,938
311,988
-

2016
$

558,600
257,641
8,148
(92,404)
-

958,537

(3,000)

955,537

731,985

394,336

-

394,336

481,112

46,683
78,710

-

46,683
78,710

66,602
57,144

519,729

-

519,729

604,858

438,808

(3,000)

435,808

127,127

3,496,516

32,788

3,529,304

3,402,177

$ 3,935,324

$ 29,788

$ 3,965,112

$ 3,529,304

See accompanying notes
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AAMGA EDUCATION FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Year ended June 30, 2017 with comparative totals for 2016
Continuing
Education
Awards and scholarships
Course and instructor fees
Contributions
Hotel, food and beverage
Management fees
Office expense
Postage and freight
Printing and duplications
Professional fees
Telephone
Travel
Miscellaneous
Total expenses

$

Management
and General

3,512
32,511
3,000
173,724
160,000
2,663
1,729
2,537
4,153
9,734
773

$

1,203
20,000
575
443
22
10,956
520
2,003
10,961

$ 46,683

$ 394,336

See accompanying notes
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Totals
Fundraising
$

28,412
20,000
26,951
520
2,827

$ 78,710

2017
$

3,512
32,511
3,000
203,339
200,000
3,238
2,172
2,559
37,907
5,193
11,737
14,561

$ 519,729

2016
$

4,679
43,684
1,000
229,554
200,000
4,853
4,201
29,714
32,729
7,404
16,171
30,869

$ 604,858
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AAMGA EDUCATION FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended June 30, 2017 with comparative totals for 2016
2017

2016

$ 435,808

$ 127,127

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities
Net realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments

(224,669)

182,768

(Increase) decrease in
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

27,031
(5,331)

38,741
5,904

Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue

18,596
(1,736)

(32,614)
(23,575)

249,699

298,351

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments

(108,920)
21,600

(310,242)
19,879

Net cash used for investing activities

(87,320)

(290,363)

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net change in cash
CASH
Beginning of year
End of year

See accompanying notes
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162,379

7,988

130,015

122,027

$ 292,394

$ 130,015
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AAMGA EDUCATION FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
(1) NATURE OF BUSINESS
The AAMGA Education Foundation (the "Foundation") is a nonprofit educational facility which provides
continuing education and professional development education to the American Association of Managing
General Agents members. The Foundation has developed a curriculum of classes by track of expertise.
Stand alone classes are supplemented by on-line classes across the United States, London and at
Cambridge University in England. Focused on enhancing its service offerings and reputation in the
marketplace through innovative, qualitative and diverse interactive learning, the Foundation evolves with
market changes and adapts to the constantly changing needs of the American Association of Managing
General Agents members and their customers.

(2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, revenues
are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.
Basis of Presentation
The Foundation reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to the
following three classes of net assets:
Unrestricted net assets
Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
Temporarily restricted net assets
Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions that will be satisfied by actions of the
Foundation and/or the passage of time. When a restriction is satisfied, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as "net
assets released from restrictions."
Permanently restricted net assets
Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions that such assets be maintained indefinitely.
There were no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2017 and 2016.
Accounting Estimates
In preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
("GAAP"), management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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AAMGA EDUCATION FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
Fair Value Measurements of Assets and Liabilities
GAAP defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
(i.e., the "exit price") in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use
of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most
observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are those that market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the
Foundation. Unobservable inputs reflect the Foundation’s assumptions about the inputs market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available
in the circumstances. The fair value hierarchy is categorized into three levels based on the inputs as
follows:
Level 1 – Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Foundation has the ability to access. Since valuations are based on quoted prices
that are readily and regularly available in an active market, valuation of these assets and liabilities
does not entail a significant degree of judgment.
Level 2 – Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant
inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 – Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable, that is, inputs that reflect the
Foundation's own assumptions.
Concentrations of Credit Risk
Financial instruments which potentially subject the Foundation to concentrations of credit risk are cash
and accounts receivable. The Foundation maintains cash deposits at one financial institution. At times,
such deposits may exceed federally-insured limits. Accounts receivable are expected to be collected
during 2018.
Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings and a
credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts.
Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written
off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. Changes in the
valuation allowance have not been material to the financial statements. The Foundation does not
charge interest on outstanding balances.
Investments
Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are reported at fair value with gains and losses included in the statement of activities.
Dividend and interest income is recorded as earned.
The Foundation invests in a professionally-managed portfolio that contains various types of securities
(See Note 3). Such investments are exposed to market and credit risk. Due to the level of risk
associated with such investments, and the level of uncertainty related to changes in the value of such
investments, it is at least reasonably possible that the amounts reported in the financial statements
could change materially in the near term.
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AAMGA EDUCATION FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
Revenue and Support
Continuing education income is recognized as revenue in the year to which it relates. Revenue received
in advance of the applicable year is included in deferred revenue in the accompanying statement of
financial position.
Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net
assets depending on the absence or existence and nature of any donor restrictions. Donor-restricted
contributions whose restrictions are satisfied in the same period are reported as unrestricted.
Unconditional contributions are recognized as revenue when the related promise to give is received.
Conditional contributions are recognized as revenue when the conditions are satisfied.
Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing program and supporting services have been summarized on a functional basis in
the statements of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the program and supporting services benefited.
Income Taxes
The Foundation is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code. However, income from certain activities not directly related to the Foundation's tax-exempt
purpose is subject to taxation as unrelated business income.
GAAP requires entities to evaluate, measure, recognize and disclose any uncertain income tax positions
taken on their tax returns. GAAP prescribes a minimum recognition threshold that a tax position is
required to meet in order to be recognized in the financial statements. The Foundation believes that it
had no uncertain tax positions as defined in GAAP.
Summarized Prior-Year Information
The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not
by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read
in conjunction with the Foundation’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016, from which
the summarized information was derived.
Reclassifications
Certain items in the 2016 summarized comparative information have been reclassified in order to
conform to the 2017 presentation.

(3) INVESTMENTS
Investments consist of the following at June 30,:
2017
Money market funds
Mutual funds
Equity
Fixed income

$

-8-

-

2016
$ 154,394

2,128,321
1,615,605

1,817,394
1,460,149

$3,743,926

$ 3,431,937
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AAMGA EDUCATION FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
Investment income (loss) consists of the following at June 30,:

Interest and dividends
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)
Less: investment management fees

2017

2016

$ 108,919
224,669
(21,600)

$ 110,243
(182,768)
(19,879)

$ 311,988

$

(92,404)

Investments are measured at fair value using Level 1 (quoted prices in active markets) valuation inputs.

(4)

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Temporarily restricted net assets are restricted for disaster relief at June 30, 2017 and 2016.

(5)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Foundation shares common management and some common board members with the American
Association of Managing General Agents (the "Association"). At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Foundation
had a receivable of $5,185 and $32,866, respectively, from the Association.
In 2016, the Association also gave a contribution of $145,000 to the Foundation for continuing education.
The Foundation’s Executive Director is sole owner of the management company from which the
Foundation receives services (See Note 6).

(6)

MANAGEMENT FEE
On June 1, 2017, the Foundation terminated its agreement with a management company effective
November 30, 2017. Management fees were agreed upon between the Foundation and management
company on an annual basis. Fees incurred under the agreement were $200,000 for each of the years
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.

(7)

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 21, 2017, the date on which the
financial statements were available to be issued. Except as noted below, no material subsequent events
have occurred that require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
The Foundation is currently in merger discussions with another 501(c)(3) organization.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Board of Directors
DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational
Foundation (the “Foundation”), which comprise the statements of financial position as of July 31, 2017
and 2016, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Foundation as of July 31, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Kansas City, Missouri
August 31, 2017
Member of Kreston International – a global network of independent accounting firms
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DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
July 31, 2017 and 2016
2017

2016

ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

$

PLEDGES RECEIVABLE
INVESTMENTS
PREPAID EXPENSES
TOTAL ASSETS

578,790

$

541,238

28,291

76,013

6,704,390

6,147,942

9,450

5,169

$

7,320,921

$

6,770,362

$

23,275

$

14,417

LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
RELATED PARTY PAYABLE

4,478

5,466

CONTRIBUTION PAYABLE

25,000

25,000

TOTAL LIABILITIES

52,753

44,883

UNRESTRICTED

5,276,327

4,770,826

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED

1,443,838

1,406,650

548,003

548,003

7,268,168

6,725,479

NET ASSETS

PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED
TOTAL NET ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$

See Notes to Financial Statements
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7,320,921

$

6,770,362
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DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year Ended July 31, 2017
Temporarily
Restricted

Unrestricted
SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Contributions
Special events income
Special events expenses
Interest and dividend income
Realized gain
Unrealized gain
In-kind revenue
Net assets released from restrictions

$

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

188,200
153,930
(55,095)
102,756
15,547
328,121
96,631
82,445

$

Permanently
Restricted

8,983
25,469
3,711
81,470
(82,445)

$

Total
-

$

197,183
153,930
(55,095)
128,225
19,258
409,591
96,631
-

912,535

37,188

-

949,723

94,130
70,000
67,642
46,187
27,789
19,016
7,406
801
332,971

-

-

94,130
70,000
67,642
46,187
27,789
19,016
7,406
801
332,971

28,989
25,841
9,325
3,975
3,187
2,746
74,063

-

-

28,989
25,841
9,325
3,975
3,187
2,746
74,063

TOTAL EXPENSES

407,034

-

-

407,034

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

505,501

37,188

-

542,689

4,770,826

1,406,650

548,003

6,725,479

EXPENSES
Program services
Educational grants
Scholarships
Management fees
Solvency study
ASLI designation project
Speaker fee
Meetings
Office supplies
Total program services
General and administrative
Management fees
Investment management fees
Legal and accounting
Insurance
Miscellaneous
Board of Director meetings
Total general and administrative

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

$

5,276,327

$

1,443,838

See Notes to Financial Statements
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$

548,003

$

7,268,168
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DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year Ended July 31, 2016
Temporarily
Restricted

Unrestricted
SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Contributions
Special events revenue
Special events expenses
Interest and dividend income
Realized gain
Unrealized loss
In-kind revenue
Net assets released from restrictions

$

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE
EXPENSES
Program services
Educational grants
Scholarships
Management fees
Solvency study
ASLI designation project
Speaker fee
Meetings
Office supplies
Total program services
General and administrative
Management fees
Investment management fees
Legal and accounting
Insurance
Board of Director meetings
Miscellaneous
Total general and administrative
TOTAL EXPENSES
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

$

184,000
177,460
(62,371)
83,917
52,527
(62,268)
92,433
61,677

$

51,653
24,924
13,467
(23,669)
(61,677)

Permanently
Restricted
$

-

Total
$

235,653
177,460
(62,371)
108,841
65,994
(85,937)
92,433
-

527,375

4,698

-

532,073

174,361
70,000
64,703
47,671
29,719
19,135
7,000
2,950
421,539

-

-

174,361
70,000
64,703
47,671
29,719
19,135
7,000
2,950
421,539

27,730
22,159
8,967
3,975
2,624
2,147
67,602

-

-

27,730
22,159
8,967
3,975
2,624
2,147
67,602

489,141

-

-

489,141

38,234

4,698

-

42,932

4,732,592

1,401,952

4,770,826

$

1,406,650

See Notes to Financial Statements
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548,003
$

548,003

6,682,547
$

6,725,479
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DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended July 31, 2017 and 2016
2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Changes in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to net
cash flows from operating activities
Realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments
Net change in assets and liabilities:
Pledges receivable
Prepaid expense
Accounts payable
Related party payable
Contribution payable

$

$

(428,849)

(14,253)
(2,669)
14,417
5,009
25,000

165,151

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
$

See Notes to Financial Statements
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42,932

19,943

47,722
(4,281)
8,858
(988)
-

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

542,689

2016

90,379

(850,954)
723,355

(1,392,133)
-

(127,599)

(1,392,133)

37,552

(1,301,754)

541,238

1,842,992

578,790

$

541,238
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DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(1)

Description of the organization
The Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation (the “Foundation”) was incorporated on
November 19, 1991, for the purpose of advancing the knowledge of surplus lines industry to
regulators, practitioners, and the general public.

(2)

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting - The Foundation prepares its financial statements on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Income taxes - The Foundation is exempt from federal income taxes under the provisions of
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is exempt from state income taxes under tax
laws of the State of Missouri, and is not considered a private foundation. Accordingly, no provision
has been made for federal and state income taxes.
The Foundation has adopted the standards requiring disclosure of uncertain tax positions under
ASC topic 740 “Income Taxes,” and has not recognized any interest or penalties in either the
statements of activities and changes in net assets or in the statements of financial position related
to uncertain tax positions. In addition, no tax positions exist for which it is reasonably possible
that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease within
the next twelve months.
Cash and cash equivalents - The Foundation considers cash on hand and demand deposits with
financial institutions with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Pledges receivable - Pledges receivable that are expected to be collected in future years are
recorded at the present value of their estimated future cash flows less any allowance for doubtful
accounts. The discounts on those amounts are computed using interest rates applicable to the
years in which the promises are received. Amortization of the discounts is included in
contribution revenue. Management periodically evaluates the collectability of pledges and adjusts
the adequacy of the allowance based on past bad debt experience, adverse situations that may
affect the ability to pay, and current economic conditions.
Investments and investment income - Investments are recorded at fair value.
income includes dividends, interest, and realized and unrealized gains and losses.
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DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(2)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Fair value measurements - The Foundation measures financial assets and liabilities at fair value
in accordance with ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. Fair value
measurements involve various valuation techniques and assume that the transaction would occur
between market participants in the most advantageous market for the Foundation. ASC 820-10
establishes a fair value hierarchy and prioritizes the valuation techniques used to measure fair
value into three tiers and gives the highest priority to observable inputs such as quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3). The maximization of observable inputs and the minimization of the use of
unobservable inputs are required. Classification within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the
objectivity of the inputs that are significant to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the
measurement date.
The three levels within the fair value hierarchy are characterized as follows:
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
Foundation has the ability to access at the measurement date.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include: quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that
are not active; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and
inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation
or other means.
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability for which there is little, if any, market
activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. Unobservable inputs reflect the
Foundation’s own assumptions about what market participants would use to price the asset or
liability. Management utilizes the best available information in measuring fair value. As a practical
expedient, management uses the net asset value (NAV) provided by the general partners as its
estimate of fair value.
In some instances, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy and is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.
Market price is affected by a number of factors, including the type of instrument and the
characteristics specific to the instrument. Instruments with readily available active quoted prices
or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally will have a higher
degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair
value. It is reasonably possible that change in values of these instruments will occur in the nearterm and that such changes could materially affect amounts reported in the Foundation’s financial
statements.
The fair value of fixed income and equity securities is based primarily on quoted market prices.
The fair value of investments in hedge funds is estimated by management based on estimates
provided by the general partner.
Net asset classification - To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of
resources available, or lack thereof to the Foundation, net assets have been classified into the
following:
Unrestricted net assets: Unrestricted net assets include expendable resources over which the
Foundation’s Board of Directors’ has discretionary control and are used to carry out the
Foundation’s operations in accordance with its bylaws.
-7-
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DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(2)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Net asset classification (continued) - Temporarily restricted net assets: Temporarily restricted net
assets include resources expendable only for those purposes specified by the donor or grantor.
The restrictions are satisfied either by the passage of time or by actions of the Foundation.
Permanently restricted net assets: Permanently restricted net assets represent resources whose
use by the Foundation is limited by donor-imposed restrictions that the corpus be held in perpetuity.
The earnings from these permanently restricted net assets are available for purposes as specified
by the donor.
Special event income - Special events income consists of fundraising income received from an
annual golf tournament hosted by the Foundation. The income consists of sponsorship and
registration fees and is recognized when the event occurs.
Functional expenses - The Foundation allocates expenses on a functional basis among various
programs and support services. Expenses that can be identified with a specific program and
committee activity are allocated directly according to their natural expenditure classification. Other
expenses that are common to several functions are allocated by management’s estimate of
resources devoted.
Fundraising costs - The Foundation incurs an immaterial amount of fundraising expenses. As
such, these expenses are included as general and administrative on the statements of activities and
change in net assets.

(3)

Pledges receivable
Pledges receivable consist of unconditional promises to give from donors concentrated within the
surplus lines industry related to the various educational programs and lecture series that are
provided.
July 31,
2017
2016
$

Due in less than one year
Due in one to five years
Less present value discount

30,000
30,000

$

(1,709)

Total

$

The discount rate for all pledges receivable is 4%.
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28,291

45,000
35,000
80,000
(3,987)

$

76,013
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DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(4)

Investments and investment income
Management of the Foundation endeavors to utilize the best available information in measuring
fair value. The following tables summarize the valuation of financial instruments by the fair value
pricing levels in Note 2 as of July 31, 2017 and 2016.
July 31, 2017
Level 1
Level 2

Fair Value
Fixed income mutual funds
Equity mutual funds
Hedge fund

$ 2,565,496
3,098,328
1,040,566

$ 2,565,496
3,098,328
-

$

-

$

1,040,566

$

$ 5,663,824

$

-

$

1,040,566

6,704,390

July 31, 2016
Level 1
Level 2

Fair Value
Fixed income mutual funds
Equity mutual funds
Hedge fund

Level 3

Level 3

$ 2,460,602
2,723,966
963,374

$ 2,460,602
2,723,966
-

$

-

$

963,374

$

$ 5,184,568

$

-

$

963,374

6,147,942

2017
Fixed income mutual funds
Equity mutual funds
Hedge fund

2016

Cost

Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

$ 2,588,419
2,864,072
975,650

$ 2,565,496
3,098,328
1,040,566

$ 2,523,513
2,782,704
975,650

$ 2,460,602
2,723,966
963,374

$ 6,428,141

$ 6,704,390

$ 6,281,867

$ 6,147,942

Total investment income is comprised of the following:

Interest and dividend income
Realized gain
Unrealized gain (loss)

2017
Temporarily
Unrestricted
Restricted

2016
Temporarily
Unrestricted
Restricted

$

102,756
15,547
328,121

$

25,469
3,711
81,470

$

$

446,424

$

110,650

$

-9-

83,917 $
52,527
(62,268)
74,176

$

24,924
13,467
(23,669)
14,722
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DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(4)

Investments and investment income (continued)
The changes in investments measured at fair value for which the Foundation has used Level 3
inputs to determine fair value are as follows:

Balance at July 31, 2016

$

963,374

Purchases
Unrealized gains

77,192

Balance at July 31, 2017

$ 1,040,566

The Foundation’s hedge fund requires 95 days advance notice prior to quarterly redemptions. The
redemptions are limited to 25% of the total NAV for the first quarterly redemption period with the
remaining quarterly redemptions being satisfied over no more than two additional periods. There
are no unfunded commitments related to the hedge fund for the year ended July 31, 2017.
(5)

Temporarily restricted net assets
Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of donor restricted contributions received for the
following:
July 31,
2017
2016
EG Lassiter lecture series
Kemper pledge
Russell Bond scholarship
Gary Frohn scholarship
Michael Snead scholarship
Rolland Weigers scholarship
Scott Polley scholarship
Dick Hull scholarship
Kevin McLaughlin scholarship
Net temporarily restricted earnings:
Rolland Wiegers scholarship
Kevin McLaughlin scholarship
Scott Polley scholarship
Dick Hull scholarship

$

346,761
30,000
17,954
57,089
3,903
385,450
307,000
125,000
142,124

$

8,061
6,347
9,596
4,553

Total temporarily restricted net assets

$

-10-

1,443,838

336,104
30,000
21,493
52,015
8,464
385,450
307,000
125,000
141,124
-

$

1,406,650
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DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(5)

Temporarily restricted net assets (continued)
Temporarily restricted net assets released from restriction consisted of the following:
July 31,
2017
EG Lassiter lecture series
Russell Bond scholarship
Gary Frohn scholarship
Michael Snead scholarship
Rolland Weigers scholarship
Scott Polley scholarship
Dick Hull scholarship
Kevin McLaughlin scholarship
Total temporarily restricted net assets

(6)

2016

$

19,016
8,539
5,631
9,259
15,000
15,000
5,000
5,000

$

19,135
4,587
4,309
4,669
7,891
11,086
5,000
5,000

$

82,445

$

61,677

Endowments
The Foundation’s endowment consists of two permanently restricted funds established for
scholarships and general operations. The endowment only includes donor-restricted funds. In
accordance with ASC 958, “Endowments of Not-for-Profit Organizations,” net assets associated
with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donorimposed restrictions.
In August 2009, the State of Missouri enacted a version of the Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). The Board of Directors of the Foundation has interpreted
UPMIFA as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.
As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a)
the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent
gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument. The remaining portion of the
donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is
classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure
by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In
accordance with UPMIFA, the Foundation considers the following factors in making a determination
to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:
(1) The duration and preservation of the fund.
(2) The purposes of the Foundation and the donor-restricted endowment fund.
(3) General economic conditions.
(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation.
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments.
(6) Other resources of the Foundation.
(7) The investment policies of the Foundation.
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DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(6)

Endowments (continued)
For the year ended July 31, 2017, the Foundation had the following endowment-related activities:

Unrestricted
Beginning balance, August 1, 2016

$

(23,443)

Investment gain
Investment income
Net appreciation, realized and unrealized
Total investment gain

$

4,993

Amounts appropriated for expenditure
Transfers
Total change in endowment
funds
Ending balance, July 31, 2017

Donor-Designated
Temporarily
Permanently
Restricted
Restricted
-

(18,450)

548,003

$

524,560

2,305
7,688
9,993

-

2,305
7,688
9,993

(5,000)
(4,993)

-

(5,000)
-

-

4,993

4,993
$

$

Total

$

-

$

548,003

$

529,553

For the year ended July 31, 2016, the Foundation had the following endowment-related activities:

Unrestricted
Beginning balance, August 1, 2015

$

(19,637)

Investment gain
Investment income
Net appreciation, realized and unrealized
Total investment gain

$

(3,806)

Amounts appropriated for expenditure
Transfers
Total change in endowment
funds
Ending balance, July 31, 2016

Donor-Designated
Temporarily
Permanently
Restricted
Restricted

(3,806)
$

(23,443)

-

$

Total
$

528,366

2,021
(827)
1,194

-

2,021
(827)
1,194

(5,000)
3,806

-

(5,000)
-

$

548,003

-

$

548,003

(3,806)
$

524,560

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the Foundation to retain as a fund
of perpetual duration. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, deficiencies of this nature that were reported in unrestricted net assets were
$18,450 and $23,443 as of July 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. These deficiencies resulted from
unfavorable market fluctuations that occurred shortly after the investment of new permanently
restricted contributions and continued appropriation for certain programs that was deemed prudent by
the Board of Directors.
Return objectives and risk parameters
The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt
to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowments while seeking
to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those
assets of donor-restricted funds. In order to obtain maximum benefits from the assets of the
Foundation, the investment goals include achieving long-term growth of capital within specified risk
constraints, production of a reasonable rate of return on the investment assets, consistent with the
assumption of a prudent level of risk, and protection of the Foundation’s assets from inflation, so
that they will be available for the long-term use.
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DEREK HUGHES/NAPSLO EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(6)

Endowments (continued)
Strategies employed for achieving objectives
To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Foundation relies on a total return strategy in
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized)
and current yield (interest and dividends). The Foundation targets a diversified asset allocation that
places an emphasis on fixed-income and equity mutual funds, while seeking lower volatility to
achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.
Spending policy
One of the purposes of the Foundation’s investment assets is to provide funds to cover the portion
of the Foundation’s program costs and Foundational expenses that are not covered by ongoing
contributions. Distributions will be made at the discretion of the Board of Directors, taking into
account the investment performance results and the annual budget needs.

(7)

Related parties
The Foundation has entered into an agreement with an affiliated entity for financial management
services, administrative support, and various other services. For the years ended July 31, 2017
and 2016, the affiliated entity has agreed to waive the management fees associated with this
agreement. Total amounts received in-kind for these services were $96,631 and $92,433 for the
years ended July 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. As of July 31, 2017, the Foundation had a
related party payable of $4,478. As of July 31, 2016, the Foundation had a related party payable of
$5,466.
The Foundation also receives scholarship funding from this related party. The Foundation received
$5,000 from this related party for the years ended July 31, 2017 and 2016.
Subsequent to July 31, 2017, this related party merged with another association to create a new
entity. Management does not anticipate this merger will impact future agreements or financial
support.

(8)

Concentrations
At times during the year, the Foundation maintained cash in excess of FDIC insurance limits. The
Foundation had bank balances of $328,467 and $305,784 in excess of FDIC insurance limits at
July 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Management monitors the soundness of these financial
institutions and believes the risk of loss associated with these accounts is negligible. The
Foundation has not experienced any losses in such accounts.
As of July 31, 2017, approximately 39% of the Foundation’s purchases were from three vendors. As
of July 31, 2016, approximately 48% of NAPSLO’s purchases were from four vendors.

(9)

Subsequent events
The Foundation has evaluated subsequent events through August 31, 2017, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued. There have been no subsequent events that
would require disclosure in the financial statements or would be required to be recognized in the
financial statements as of and for the year ended July 31, 2017, except as noted in Note 7.
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CBIZ MHM, LLC
700 West 47th Street, Suite 1100
Kansas City, MO 64112 ■ www.cbiz.com
Ph: 816.945.5500 ■ F: 816.897.1280

March 27, 2017
NAPSLO
Mr. Brady Kelley, Executive Director
4131 N. Mulberry Drive, Suite 200
Kansas City, MO 64116
AAMGA / NAPSLO Merger Committee We have completed the consulting services as outlined in our engagement letter dated March 2, 2017.
That letter outlines, among other things, the objectives and scope of our services, along with the
responsibilities of both CBIZ MHM, LLC (CBIZ) and the National Association of Professional Surplus Lines
Officers (NAPSLO), as well as certain information related to the planned scope of our engagement. Our
report includes narrative documentation of the items considered and an overall conclusion.
Our report is intended solely for the information and use of the AAMGA/NAPSLO Merger Committee
and American Association of Managing General Agents (AAMGA) and NAPSLO boards of directors and
management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties. We make no representation as to the sufficiency or appropriateness of the information in our
report for the purposes of another party. In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, this
report does not constitute an audit, examination, or review in accordance with standards established by
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Our report is limited to those items which came
to our attention in connection with performing the aforementioned consulting procedures. We express
no opinion regarding the effectiveness of the AAMGA or NAPSLO’s internal controls over financial
reporting nor express an opinion on the NAPSLO responses contained herein. Although certain types of
material errors, irregularities, or fraud may be detected by our engagement, it is not designed for that
purpose and cannot be relied upon to detect such occurrences that may impact this merger. Had we
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have
been reported to you.
Accounting for the proposed transaction
The proposed merger between NAPSLO and the AAMGA would create the stated opportunity of cost
savings and efficiency in the financial performance of the newly created entity, Wholesale & Specialty
Insurance Association (WSIA). Based on the information provided, this transaction would be recorded
as a merger in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) rather than as an
acquisition or another type of combination such as a joint venture. A merger is accounted for using the
carryover method of accounting. Under the carryover method, a new organization is created by
combining the assets, liabilities, and net assets of the merged organizations as of the merger date. A
merger is defined as a transaction or event in which the governing bodies of two or more nonprofit
organizations cede control of those entities to create a new nonprofit organization. To qualify as a new
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nonprofit organization, the new entity must have a newly formed governing body. As a result of the
guidance in GAAP, it would be determined that this new transaction would constitute a merger.
Analysis of AAMGA internal financial statements – Year ended June 30, 2016
During our analysis of the document referred to above, we highlight the following questions and/or
considerations, as follows:
1. As of June 30, 2016, investments recorded at fair value were $1,874,387. The Treasurer’s
Talking/Bullet Points note that these investments are comprised of equities (49.8%), fixed
income (40.0%), and money markets (10.2%). It may be beneficial to understand the investment
policy of AAMGA to determine if these investments are reflective of the current investment
policy adopted by AAMGA. Further, NAPSLO should understand any expectations moving
forward as to a future investment policy of WSIA. In addition, it should be determined if there
are any restrictions on the current investments of AAMGA in terms of liquidation or the ability
to invest in other investments. Based on the description of the investments in this internal
financial report, it appears that all of the investments of AAMGA as of June 30, 2016 are in easyto-value investments, which would equate to either a level 1 or level 2 valuation methodology
within US GAAP.
NAPSLO Response: AAMGA’s investment advisor is Prairie Capital Management (PCM) and
therefore would have an Investment Policy Statement (IPS) in place. The AAMGA will be asked to
provide a current copy of the IPS. Currently, NAPSLO’s investment advisor is Bradley, Foster &
Sargent (BFS). WSIA would utilize the Investments Subcommittee, part of the Audit and
Compliance Committee of the new organization, to make a recommendation to the WSIA Board
regarding selecting one investment advisor for WSIA and to develop a new IPS.
AAMGA Response: PCM is the investment advisor for the AAMGA and its Foundation, and a
copy of the IPS was provided to NAPSLO and MHM.
2. As of June 30, 2016 the capitalized website development costs of $71,235 are fully amortized,
resulting in a net book value of $0. Capitalized hardware and buildout costs have a net book
value of $11,192, and capitalized IMIS 15 / implementation and enhancements have a net book
value of $2,720. While items of this nature are typically amortized over three to five years for
internal book purposes, minimal net book values for these types of assets may indicate that
there are deferred costs to be incurred in the immediate future related to IT or infrastructure
costs.
NAPSLO Response: The AAMGA uses the same membership database (iMIS) as NAPSLO. Upon
merger, it is expected AAMGA data would be merged into the existing NAPSLO membership
database, which is a more recent version of iMIS. Minimal costs for additional user licenses are
anticipated and have been considered. In addition, $25,000 in membership database conversion
and support is included in the pro forma financial projections.
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AAMGA Response: The AAMGA’s iMIS 15 implementation, enhancements and related hardware
were amortized over three years and will be fully amortized at the fiscal year end June 30, 2017.
All other fixed assets are owned by Accolade Management.
3. As of June 30, 2016 both accounts payable and accounts payable – annual meeting increased
from balances as of June 30, 2015. Regular accounts payable increased from $35,919 to
$78,977 while accounts payable – annual meeting increased from $252,127 to $637,382.
Increases such as these may simply indicate a timing difference, or it may indicate an inability to
pay or an improper cut-off of liabilities.
AAMGA Response: The increase in regular accounts payable is due primarily to an increase in
the amount due to Accolade for expenses paid by Accolade on behalf of the AAMGA. The
increase in accounts payable – annual meeting is due to the hotel invoice that was paid earlier in
2015.
4. As of June 30, 2016 total equity, or net assets, is $2,186,237. There are no indications of any
restrictions on this amount, either permanent or temporary. While it is typical for associations
to have only unrestricted net assets, it is important to understand if there are any funds that
were received by AAMGA that might have temporary or permanent restrictions.
AAMGA Response: The AAMGA confirmed that it has no restricted assets.
5. The statement of income and expense for the year ended June 30, 2016 indicates Board of
Directors / President travel of $60,185. It is important to ensure that the expectations around
travel are clear within WSIA. While it is important that all policies are evaluated, travel and
related entertainment expenses can be sensitive areas and understanding proposed policies
around travel and entertainment can eliminate future misunderstandings.
NAPSLO Response: Both organizations pay for certain travel expenditures for board members to
attend meetings held by their respective organizations or if they are traveling as a representative
of the organization. A similar policy will exist for WSIA and will be distributed to the WSIA Board.
AAMGA Response: This expense represents hotel and airfare for certain AAMGA Board
members to attend Board meetings each February, August and November. It also includes near
$25,000 of expenses for Accolade Management staff who travel to support these Board
meetings.
6. The total management fee for the year ended June 30, 2016 was $830,000. It appears that this
was the exact amount that was budgeted, indicating that the management fee is a set contract
amount. If the management fee was calculated in a different way, or contained clauses that
could potentially impact the calculation of this amount, it would be beneficial to know and
understand a potential increase in that amount which would be paid out of AAMGA prior to
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merging with WSIA, thereby reducing the cash and investments that would be transferred to the
new entity. Also, at June 30, 2016, accounts payable included $70,370 in amounts due to
Accolade. These items are expense reimbursements due to Accolade. It may be relevant to
understand if these are a part of the contract amount or are billed in addition to the contract
amount.
NAPSLO Response: The AAMGA pays for a flat contracted fee of $830,000 per year, plus
expenses incurred. The WSIA pro forma includes payment of the contracted amount through
March 31, 2018. We anticipate the accounts payable due to Accolade Management Company at
the end of June 30, 2016 would reflect expenses incurred to be paid by AAMGA per contract.
AAMGA Response: AAMGA pays a flat management fee to Accolade Management, which is
agreed upon at the beginning of each year. Accolade invoices the AAMGA 1/12 of the annual fee
monthly, which is currently $69,167 per month. Additionally, Accolade does have a separate
American Express account that is used to pay for staff travel and supplies and is invoiced to the
AAMGA.
7. The investments fair value adjustment for the year ended June 30, 2016 was a negative $71,156.
The investments fair value adjustment for the year ended June 30, 2015 was a negative $46,398.
It is not unusual to see investment performances that are volatile, but continued losses may
indicate a detailed analysis of investments should be performed.
NAPSLO Response: The AAMGA will be asked to respond to this item. We anticipate the copy of
the IPS and a summary of the AAMGA portfolio’s performance in relation to its benchmarks used
to monitor performance, which we anticipate is provided to the AAMGA by PCM, will be helpful
to MHM’s review.
AAMGA Response: AAMGA investments are marked to market each month and although there
was a negative fair value adjustment at June 30, 2016 this has since recovered. These were a
result of normal market fluctuations.
8. The Treasurer’s Talking / Bullet Points indicates there is an accrual of $2,333 for tax on unrelated
business income (UBI). It would be beneficial to understand what the sources of UBI are and to
determine if there are “gray” areas where UBI is not being recorded but may represent
exposure for the new entity. The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) states that UBI is subject to tax
if it meets all of the following three requirements
a. The income is generated from a trade or business
b. It is regularly carried on, and
c. It is not substantially related to furthering the exempt purpose of the organization.
Associations in general most commonly have UBI issues related to advertising in magazines or
sponsorship payments that are actually advertising.
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NAPSLO Response: The AAMGA collects revenue for advertising in the membership directory
and WIN magazine, which we anticipate is reported as unrelated business income; however, the
AAMGA will be asked to confirm this along with any other source of UBI. Neither of these items
will be revenue sources upon formation of WSIA.
AAMGA Response: The UBI is related to non-member advertising published in the membership
directory and WIN magazine. Since the revenue is shared with Naylor, a percentage of nonmembers to members who pay for advertising is used to determine the appropriate amount of
unrelated business income to be taxed.
9. Does AAMGA engage in lobbying? If so, are dues notices accurately reflecting the percentage of
dues being used for lobbying and disclosed on the Form 990?
AAMGA Response: The AAMGA does not currently conduct any lobbying and therefore does not
disclose any percentage on the dues notices or Form 990.
10. It is noted that there was $40,452 in publication revenue Naylor, WIN, and Directory. Are these
delivered in hard copy or electronic copy? Many associations are seeing fluctuations in not only
member dues but publication revenues and understanding future revenue streams is important.
NAPSLO Response: The AAMGA’s membership directory is delivered in a hardcopy booklet
format, which will be eliminated in WSIA. WIN magazine is delivered in a hard copy to each
member and is also available through an electronic link, neither of which will be supported by
WSIA.
AAMGA Response: Approximately $10,000 of this revenue is from advertising in the
membership directory. The remaining revenue is from the WIN magazine, which is published four
times a year as is available in hard copy and on the AAMGA’s website.
Analysis of AAMGA Education Foundation internal financial statements – Year ended June 30, 2016
During our analysis of the document referred to above, we highlight the following questions and/or
considerations, as follows:
1. What is the overall goal in the merger related to the treatment of the related foundations? Are
there transactions between AAMGA and the AAMGA Education Foundation where money from
AAMGA could be transferred to the Education Foundation should the Education Foundation not
be a part of the merger? Are there contributors to the Education Foundation that may not
contribute when the merger occurs? Can the Foundations eventually merge into a single
foundation? An overarching question would be if the contributions to the Education Foundation
are impacted by the merger, or if monies could be shifted from AAMGA to the Education
Foundation.
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NAPSLO Response: The intent of both organizations is to explore options to merge the two
Foundations after the WSIA merger is complete. It is possible, if the foundations merge, that
total contributions may be less than current contributions for the separate entities. Under the
merger proposal, the AAMGA Education Foundation’s revenues and expenses supporting specific
AAMGA education programs are proposed to be transferred to WSIA where the programs will be
staffed and administered, which is considered in the pro forma. Based on the AAMGA and
NAPSLO letter of intent, it is not anticipated that funds will be shifted from the AAMGA to the
Education Foundation between now and the date of merger.
AAMGA Response: Accolade Management holds separate American Express cards to handle
any expenses on behalf of the Foundation; however, there is very little due to/due from the
AAMGA and the Foundation. There is some concern regarding the contribution received from the
Surplus Lines Association of Arizona Foundation being reduced if there is one combined
foundation as they currently contribute to both the AAMGA Education Foundation and the Derek
Hughes/NAPSLO Education Foundation annually. However, it is not anticipated that this would
have a major impact on the financial stability of a combined foundation.
2. As of June 30, 2016, there are total pledged receivables of $28,500. There is a related allowance
for uncollectible accounts in the amount of $14,000. A large allowance, in this specific instance
approximately 50% of the total outstanding pledged balance, can indicate that the Foundation
has pledges that are not collectible.
AAMGA Response: All remaining pledges will be written off if not collected by June 30, 2017.
3. As of June 30, 2016, there are two items noted that are “board restricted”. In non-profit
accounting, only donors can “restrict” and only boards can “designate”. At a minimum the
wording used on the balance sheet is inaccurate. In addition, the “board restricted GSU funds”
is a debit balance. This is unusual and understanding this debit balance would be helpful. Also it
would relevant to understand if there are any restricted items, whether they be permanent or
temporary. Typically, temporarily restricted items are either restricted by time or purpose. A
pledge receivable is normally restricted due to time, although the balance sheet does not show
any temporarily restricted net assets.
NAPSLO Response: The AAMGA will be asked to respond to this item.
AAMGA Response: The AAMGA currently has a Board designated fund, which represents the
$1,000,000 donated for the distinguished chair at Georgia State University. The debit balance is
a result of payments made to Georgia State University, but which were outside the distinguished
chair contribution. The AAMGA will make a transfer of this balance back to unrestricted prior to
June 30, 2017. There is also donor-restricted fund from the Duesenberg family, which is to be
used to fund a project designated by the Duesenberg family.
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4. As of June 30, 2016 investments were $3,431,937. The Treasurer’s Talking / Bullet Points show
equities (53.0%), fixed income (42.5%), and money markets (4.5%). As outlined above in
relation to the AAMGA investments, it would be beneficial to understand the investment policy
should the Foundation be a part of the merger at some point and expectations moving forward.
NAPSLO Response: The AAMGA will be asked to respond to this item. We anticipate the copy of
the IPS and a summary of the AAMGA portfolio’s performance in relation to its benchmarks used
to monitor performance, which we anticipate is provided to the AAMGA by PCM, will be helpful
to MHM’s review.
AAMGA Response: PCM is the investment advisor for the AAMGA and its Foundation, and a
copy of the IPS was provided to NAPSLO and MHM.
5. The management fee for the year ended June 30, 2016 is $200,000. Is this a set amount? Can it
be impacted through an alternative calculation possibly triggered by a clause in the
management agreement? Could it be increased if the Education Foundation is not a part of the
merger? Is this management agreement the total amount per the contract or are other
expenses separately billed?
NAPSLO Response: The Foundation pays a flat contracted fee of $200,000 per year plus
expenses incurred. It is recommended the Foundation will terminate the Accolade agreement to
end by March 31, 2018 and WSIA will enter into a services agreement immediately following the
merger to provide support services to the AAMGA Education Foundation much like the current
agreement between NAPSLO and the Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation.
AAMGA Response: Yes, the $200,000 is a set amount contract. Any expenses incurred by
Accolade on behalf of the Foundation would be reimbursed to Accolade; however, this is a rare
circumstance for the Foundation.
6. As noted above on AAMGA, the investments fair value adjustments for the years ended June 30,
2016 and 2015 were negative amounts or losses of $182,769 and $120,554, respectively. These
losses may indicate a detailed analysis of investments should occur.
AAMGA Response: The Foundation investments are marked to market each month and
although there was a negative fair value adjustment at June 30, 2016 this has since recovered.
These losses were a result of normal market fluctuations.
Analysis of AAMGA audited financial statements – Years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
1. The audit report was unmodified and considered a “clean” opinion.
2. Depending on the dues structure, billings, and timing of dues collected, it would be typical to
see a liability account called “deferred dues”. However, there are no “deferred dues” noted on
the audited financial statements.
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NAPSLO Response: AAMGA’s dues billing cycle is from July 1 to June 30. The AAMGA will be
asked to respond to this item and provide an explanation as to the timing of invoices, collections
and accounting for deferred dues at June 30, 2016.
AAMGA Response: AAMGA does not invoice the members until after July 1st of each year;
therefore, there would be no deferred revenue balance at the end of the fiscal year.
3. A new program services expense was noted for the year ended June 30, 2016. The expense,
called “Education” on the audited financial statements, was a contribution to the Education
Foundation as described in the footnotes to the audited financial statements and was in the
amount of $145,000. No similar amount was contributed for the year ended June 30, 2015.
What was the purpose of this contribution?
NAPSLO Response: Due to the success of AAMGA’s Annual Meeting, a one-time contribution
was made to the Foundation in fiscal year 2016. There are no indications that this is budgeted to
be an annual transaction.
AAMGA Response: AAMGA does not anticipate making any additional contributions this fiscal
year; however, that decision is ultimately be up to the AAMGA Board of Directors.
4. A significant accounting policy, outlined in footnote 2, describes the capitalization of computer
equipment. Computer equipment items are capitalized if they exceed $2,500. This seems to be
a high threshold and could lead more items to be expensed than capitalized.
AAMGA Response: The AAMGA’s confirmed this is the policy; however, any assets that are
purchased by the AAMGA are well over that threshold. By June 30, 2017 all assets will be fully
depreciated. There is no plan to make any additional purchases.
5. There are no uncertain tax positions taken by AAMGA. With a not-for-profit this typically means
that known UBI is being captured and the not-for-profit is still doing what their original
exemption said they would do.
AAMGA Response: The AAMGA does have UBI related to non-member advertising in the
membership directory and WIN magazine. Since the revenue is shared with Naylor a percentage
of non-members to members who pay for advertising is used to determine the appropriate
amount of UBI.
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6. At June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, AAMGA owed the Education Foundation $32,866 and
$53,257.
AAMGA Response: These balances represent registration revenue received by the AAMGA on
behalf of the Foundation for education programs.
7. The management agreement with the management company is dated July 1, 2010. It stays in
effect until terminated by either party with 180 days written notice. Management fees incurred
for both the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were $830,000.
NAPSLO Response: The WSIA pro forma includes payment of the contracted amount through
March 31, 2018. NAPSLO anticipates the appropriate notice will be provided to Accolade
Management Company to ensure no payments are due beyond March 31, 2018.
AAMGA Response: AAMGA confirms the information provided by NAPSLO above is accurate.
8. The footnotes describe commitments in footnote 7. It indicates that there are agreements and
related commitments through 2021 related to hotels and its annual meeting. There do not
appear to be any accruals within the audited financial statements related to these commitments
so the amounts are unknown.
NAPSLO Response: As with NAPSLO, AAMGA has long-term hotel contracts and does not accrue
for such commitments. Below are the hotel contracts that have been executed by the AAMGA.
Cancellation clauses and penalties vary depending on the length of time remaining before each
specified event.
• Scottsdale Plaza Resort – August 2017, August 2018 and August 2019
• JW Marriott Palm Desert – May 2018
• Gaylord National – May 2019
• JW Marriott Desert Ridge Scottsdale – May 2021
• NAPSLO staff are working with these hotels to negotiate appropriate date, term and
condition changes to accommodate the WSIA Spring Summit from 2018 to 2021.
AAMGA Response: The AAMGA confirmed there are no other long-term contracts or
commitments that have not been disclosed and/or shared with NAPSLO and MHM.
9. Were there any material weaknesses, significant deficiencies, or control deficiencies
communicated?
AAMGA Response: AAMGA will provide a copy of the full management report to NAPSLO and
MHM. There are no material weaknesses, significant deficiencies or control deficiencies noted by
the auditors.
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Analysis of AAMGA Education Foundation audited financial statements – Years ended June 30, 2016
and 2015
1. The audit report was unmodified and considered a “clean” opinion.
2. The statement of financial position indicates that there is $32,788 in temporarily restricted net
assets at June 30, 2016. These amounts relate to relief disaster. How are these used?
NAPSLO Response: The AAMGA will be asked to respond to this item.
AAMGA Response: These are Board designated funds for natural disasters that affect AAMGA
members and are paid out upon Board approval.
3. The management agreement with the management company is dated July 1, 2010. It stays in
effect until terminated by either party with 180 days written notice. Fees incurred for both the
years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were $200,000.
NAPSLO Response: NAPSLO anticipates the appropriate notice will be provided to Accolade
Management Company to ensure no payments are due beyond March 31, 2018.
AAMGA Response:
Foundation Board.

This decision still has to be agreed upon by the AAMGA Education

4. Were there any material weaknesses, significant deficiencies, or control deficiencies
communicated?
NAPSLO Response: The AAMGA will be asked to respond to this item and provide copies of any
such letters from the independent auditors to the AAMGA Board or management.
AAMGA Response: AAMGA will provide a copy of the full management report to NAPSLO and
MHM. There are no material weaknesses, significant deficiencies or control deficiencies noted by
the auditors.
Analysis of WISA Financial Pro Forma (As of March 3, 2017)
1. As noted above, there was a contribution from AAMGA to the AAMGA Education in the amount
of $145,000 for the year ended June 30, 2016. The pro forma statements assume there are no
similar transactions moving forward. This should be confirmed with the appropriate individuals
at AAMGA to ensure no amounts are transferred between now and the merger date.
NAPSLO Response: See answer above in section 3, question 3.
AAMGA Response: This would be up to the AAMGA Board but at this time they are not planning
on any additional contributions to be made.
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2. The membership dues assume no change in the dues structure until FY 2019. At that point a
revised dues structure would take effect. The dues structure projection indicates approximately
$2,790,750 in membership dues. This is down slightly from FY 2017 combined dues of
$2,860,328. Is it reasonable to assume that dues paying members will continue to pay for what
is equivalent to separate dues for AAMGA and NAPSLO or will the membership who are
members in both entities expect to see some sort of reduced dues because of the merger?
Similarly, will those who are not members in both entities, but a member in one entity, expect
to pay an increased membership due amount given the expanded new capabilities of WSIA?
Has there been any contemplation of an attrition of members over the next five years?
NAPSLO Response: AAMGA’s membership year is July 1 through June 30. NAPSLO’s
membership year is August 1 through July 31. For 2017, the two organizations would postpone
the invoicing of membership dues until after the memberships’ July 24 vote. Upon successful
merger, WSIA would invoice all WSIA members, as soon as possible following August 1. The
WSIA 2017-2018 dues schedule would be (1) based upon the dues formerly paid to each
organization and (2) represent a gradual transition from pre-merger dues to a WSIA dues
approach that provides a 17.5% reduction in the combined dues for members of both
organizations and a 25% increase in the AAMGA-exclusive or NAPSLO-exclusive dues schedules
prior to the merger. WSIA members will be billed for the effective period of July 1, 2017 to July
31, 2018 for AAMGA, to be consistent with the AAMGA’s existing dues period and August 1, 2017
to July 31, 2018 for NAPSLO members, to be consistent with NAPSLO’s existing dues period. On
August 1, 2018, WSIA will invoice all members based on the dues schedule as outlined in the
merger proposal which places all WSIA on a level playing field and represents a simplified dues
schedule eliminating additional fees for branch office locations of member firms.
The pro forma does not assume any significant nonrenewal of WSIA dues; however, the pro
forma also does not assume any significant increase in WSIA Spring Summit or Annual
Marketplace registration levels, which NAPSLO anticipates would offset any reduction of
membership dues in future years. While the number of WSIA may reduce slightly over time, due
to merger and acquisition activity, NAPSLO has experienced no proportionate decline in the
number of attendees at market events.
3. Education program revenues are growing over the next five years. Does this include the impact
of the two education foundations joining or being separate entities? While the education
revenue is separate from the education foundations, there could be an impact between the
services provided by the education foundations and the new entity to consider.
NAPSLO Response: The two foundations joining together or remaining separate entities will
have no impact on the education revenue or expenses. Generally speaking, net revenues from
such programs are not significant with an approach being that WSIA will either slightly breakeven or slightly subsidize the programs. There is a gradual increase in education program
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registration fees built into the pro forma for all classes in an effort to achieve and/or maintain a
break-even position for each individual program over time.
4. Investment income contemplates only interest and dividend revenue. This is a standard way to
budget for non-profits. It is worth noting that when considering unrealized and realized gains
and losses, NAPSLO appears to be experiencing net gains while AAMGA is experiencing net
losses. It would appear that an investment policy will be an important aspect of the new entity.
NAPSLO Response: See answer in section 1, question 1. We agree this is a standard way to
budget for non-profits, but also feel we can rely on targeted returns in future years, which also
offset any potential nonrenewal of dues, unexpected strategic investments, etc., as NAPSLO has
experienced over the last several years.
5. There is currently no revenue projected related to other income. Are there any plans to
generate any other sources of other income even if unrelated to directory and publication
revenue?
NAPSLO Response: See answer in section 1, question 8.
6. There is approximately $45,000 in PAC expenses projected annually. Are there two PAC’s to join
together or are they separate? Are there any issues to address in terms of legal filings or
combination of similar PAC’s?
NAPSLO Response: The AAMGA does not currently have a PAC. Corporate counsel has
determined that changing the NAPSLO PAC to the WSIA PAC will be a simple filing with the
Federal Election Commission for a name change.
7. Has consideration been given to the transfer of investments and investment advisory services?
The investment advisory fees have been moved from G&A to audit and compliance costs and
consideration should be given to the transfer and custody of the investments.
NAPSLO Response: As mentioned above, the AAMGA currently uses PCM, which is the same firm
used by the Derek Hughes/NAPSLO Educational Foundation. The AAMGA will be asked to
confirm that the investments are also held in account by the same custodian, UMB Financial
Services. If so, the conversion of these investment funds should be streamlined.
AAMGA Response: AAMGA and the AAMGA Education Foundation both use PCM as their
investment advisor and all investments are held with UMB Financial Services.
8. Approximately $60,000 is contemplated annually for IT (Computer and website) services. As
noted earlier, as most assets of this nature are fully amortized on the AAMGA books, it could be
indicative of an area where potential investment is needed. In addition, a portion of these
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expenses could be capitalized and amortized over the life of the asset. The capitalization of
technology costs would allocate expenses over the estimated useful life of the assets.
NAPSLO Response: NAPSLO and AAMGA currently leverage third party tools for IT, such as
membership databases, event registration systems, and mass email distribution. WSIA will
continue with the same approach, thus there is little need for large IT investments and/or
software assets. The $60,000 is intended to cover licensing and support fees for existing webbased software licenses.
9. Has there been consideration of the cost of data transferring into the new accounting system?
NAPSLO Response: NAPSLO staff is currently looking into the steps necessary to transfer the
data, as well as related costs.
Financial considerations
1. What is the plan for merging the accounting systems? Will there be a revised chart of accounts?
Do you need assistance to transfer data or other IT assistance?
NAPSLO Response: NAPSLO staff is currently evaluating the current accounting systems and
their functionality to determine if either will meet the needs of the new organization and if any
support will be required from outside resources. A new chart of accounts will be developed for
WSIA.
2. Are there vendor contracts that AAMGA or the Education Foundation has that need to be
discussed or cancelled? Are there any other commitments that exist?
NAPSLO Response: Currently, the AAMGA/NAPSLO Merger Committee is in discussion with the
Marriott hotel regarding existing AAMGA and NAPSLO contracts and options for renegotiating
dates, terms and conditions to accommodate future WSIA meetings and avoid any cancellation
fees or additional spending beyond that currently projected for each event within the pro forma.
3. Are there any current lawsuits or contingencies to be resolved?
NAPSLO Response: There are no current lawsuits or contingencies for NAPSLO. The AAMGA will
also be asked to respond to this item.
AAMGA Response: There are no current lawsuits or contingencies for AAMGA.
4. Are there plans to hire / staff with any AAMGA related personnel?
NAPSLO Response: At this time, there is no plan to hire any AAMGA related personnel.
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5. Are all bank reconciliations (cash and investment) performed timely and are all items
reconciled? We have seen reconciliations that contain unreconciled items. This can indicate
errors going back many months or years. If there are unreconciled differences that are material
they should be investigated.
NAPSLO Response: All NAPSLO bank reconciliations are prepared and reviewed on a monthly
basis and will be made available to MHM for review if needed. The AAMGA will also be asked to
respond to this item.
AAMGA Response: All reconciliations are up to date an there are no reconciling differences.
6. Understand the AAMGA capitalization policy. If their capitalization policy is outside the normal
ranges (capitalize items from $500 to $1,000) or that extend the useful life of an asset, it could
impact the net income through the amount of depreciation / amortization expense recorded.
NAPSLO Response: The AAMGA will be asked to respond to this item and clarify their
capitalization policy. NAPSLO’s understanding is that the AAMGA has a small amount of physical
assets such that any impact of audit adjustments are anticipated to have minimal impacts on net
income. WSIA anticipates implementing a policy of capitalizing any assets costing greater than
$500.
AAMGA Response: AAMGA has a small amount of fixed assets. All fixed assets will be fully
amortized by June 30, 2017 and will have no impact on net income.
7. Ask if there are any off-balance sheet arrangements. This could include commitments to the
executive director or management company or commitments to hotels or other meeting
arrangements.
NAPSLO Response: The AAMGA will be asked to respond to this item.
AAMGA Response: There are no off-balance sheet arrangements or commitments.
8. Are there increased insurance needs?
NAPSLO Response: Yes, WSIA revenues and programs will demand enhancements to existing
AAMGA and NAPSLO coverages. However, such enhancements are not expected to cost more
than the combination of existing AAMGA and NAPSLO insurance programs.
9. Are there loan or lease agreements outstanding that need to be cancelled or extended?
NAPSLO Response: NAPSLO’s lease for office space will likely be extended slightly as part of
WSIA’s office expansion in Kansas City, but NAPSLO has no other loan or lease agreements.
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AAMGA Response: AAMGA has no outstanding loan or lease agreements.
10. Is there any federal funding related to any of the entities impacted?
NAPSLO Response: Neither NAPSLO entity receives federal funding.
AAMGA Response: Neither AAMGA entity receives federal funding.
11. Are there any outstanding notices or communications from the IRS in relation to the exempt
purpose of the entities, payroll taxes, or generally any other communications?
NAPSLO Response: There are none for NAPSLO.
AAMGA Response: There are none for AAMGA.
12. Is there any real property owned by AAMGA to address?
NAPSLO Response: NAPSLO is not aware of any real property owned by AAMGA. The AAMGA
will be asked to confirm this understanding.
AAMGA Response: AAMGA does not own any real property.
13. Will the billing cycle be consistent with years past?
NAPSLO Response: WSIA will have a membership dues billing cycle beginning August to July 31.
14. If member dues have been received and recorded as either deferred revenue or dues, is there a
process if members request a refund? Will dues be transferred to the new entity?
NAPSLO Response: See answer in section 5, question 2.
Other considerations
1. It has been discussed that it may make sense for CBIZ MHM to interview in person
representatives of AAMGA / Accolade. This could include a teleconference meeting or trip to
King of Prussia. If this trip were to occur, it would include, but not be limited to, the following
types of questions:
a. Knowledge of fraud or potential fraud occurring.
b. Suspicions of fraud existing.
c. Allegations of fraud or suspected fraud in the organization.
d. How is ethical behavior exhibited at the organization.
e. Have all laws and / or regulations been complied with.
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f.

Has any correspondence been received from the IRS or other entity regarding any
known or alleged violations of applicable laws and regulations, such as notice of audit,
failure to pay payroll taxes, etc.
g. Aware of any improper journal activity.
h. Are there active lawsuits against AAMGA or the Educational Foundation or threats of
litigation. Any unasserted claims of which you are aware. Any past litigation.
i. Are there any commitments or contingencies not disclosed in the audited financial
statements as of June 30, 2016 or through the date of the interview.
j. Are there any past defaults of credit that would impact the future ability to borrow
funds.
NAPSLO Response: The AAMGA will be asked to respond to these inquiries.
AAMGA Response: There are no concerns with any of these items for AAMGA or the AAMGA
Education Foundation.
2. It has also been discussed that CBIZ MHM would discuss with legal counsel from Stinson to
ensure all applicable accounting areas and tax compliance areas would be addressed. This
would be a general conversation in nature and would not add any additional expense unless
areas were identified that needed to be addressed. Items to be discussed would be corporate /
legal structure, articles of incorporation, operating agreements, and any other items that may
be applicable. We will hold off on this call until it is confirmed with NAPSLO.
NAPSLO Response: NAPSLO is happy to assist in coordinating this call if necessary. NAPSLO’s
contact at Stinson is James W. Allen at 816.691.3211 or james.allen@stinson.com.
We look forward to discussing these items in further detail. This report is intended for the use of the
AAMGA/NAPSLO Merger Committee and AAMGA and NAPSLO boards of directors and management in
assessing potential issues arising as a result of the merger between AAMGA and NAPSLO. This
communication is not suitable for any other purpose or to be distributed to any other party.
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